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Website 4 o
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Stock Code Jie 4y AR 9%

Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 296 BB E X5 - 296

Key Dates HEH

Annual Results Announcement 22 June 2016 FEEHELE 201696 H22H

Book Close Dates AR S S hy G =Rl

— For 2016 AGM 15 and 16 August 2016 —BL2016lRRBAF A E 20168 A15H

N16H

— For Final Dividend 23 and 24 August 2016 — BERHAIR B 20168 H23H Kk24H

Record Dates o8k A AR

— For 2016 AGM 16 August 2016  —FE2016RRAF RS 20168 16H

— For Final Dividend 24 August 2016 —BLRHAARE 201698 H24H

2016 Annual General Meeting 16 August 2016  2016fRRBAFAE 2016F8 416 H

Payment of Final Dividend 15 September 2016 IR AREAAZ & 2016%F9H15H
(HK$0.052 per share) (Z/%0.052%7T)

Corporate Communications AGFTE !

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions)
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(is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com) A &K 2
A ARNE 2 BEERD B EL D EEEW
EBHBAER AR - EAMEFERRZKERAR
BAZAR

is available to any shareholder either in printed form or on
the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(http://www.hkex.com.hk) and the Company. In order to protect
the environment, the Company highly recommends shareholders
to receive electronic copy of this Annual Report. Shareholders
may have the right to change their choice of receipt of our future
Corporation Communications at any time by reasonable notice
in writing to the Company or the Company’s Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, by post or by email at
is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
SR BEEE

For the year ended 31 March
BREIHA3IHILAFE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T

Revenue
WA 1,721,042 2,034,787

Gross profit
ES] 1,126,504 1,441,758

EBITDA (after non-controlling interests)
HERAE ~ TIA - 8 L@ Ep 28 (kR IEERERR) 520,587 634,452

EBITDA margin (after non-controlling interests)

HRRAE ~ B - & R R AE R (HIBR SR IE A 25 1R )

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company

KRAREB AEINZFEE R H 256,224 504,277

Basic earnings per share (HK$)
BREARREF (BrT)

Total dividends per share (HKS$)
Bk E8%E (Br)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B 5L

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) principally
engage in provision of entertainment and hospitality services in
Macau.

MARKET REVIEW

Amid deepening concerns over China’s economy, ongoing
austerity initiatives and regulatory changes, Macau’s casino
revenues have fallen for consecutive 22 months in March 2016.
During the year ended 31 March 2016 (the “Year”), Macau’s
gross gaming revenues posted a decline of 29.2% year-on-year
to MOP223,167 million, but the revenue was moderated with a
decline of 13.3% in first quarter of 2016. Economic growth in
the major markets, including Mainland China and Hong Kong,
remained clouded by factors such as financial market volatility,
dwindling market demand and currency fluctuation. As a result,
inflow of Mainland China tourists to Macau, which represents
around two-thirds of the total visitor arrivals, has dropped by
3.7%.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall Review

Despite a challenging environment, the Group managed to
alleviate its revenue performance by effectively managing
customer segmentation. During the Year, revenue declined
moderately to HK$1,721.0 million (2015: HK$2,034.8 million).
The Group’s earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA”) and after non-controlling interests was
HK$520.6 million (2015: HK$634.5 million). The EBITDA margin
after non-controlling interests was 30.2% (2015: 31.2%). Profit

RERLBEFRAB([ART ) RHEKEB
NE| (T [ REE ) 2RI ERHER
LB ERRTS o

i1 3 vl g

BEEHPELCECEEME  BFENEE
BRBEREEKRNN EE - R20164F
SABMMBEESWABREE22@AEKSET
B o REZ2016F3A31HIEFE ([ RE
El)  BFEEAKRAZEFRLD29.2%E
223,167,000,00038FF 7T * #AM + 20164F 5
—FEMRAKBELZMNE13.3% - X8
MZEE MEBREBREXRFHEAX
FE FERNMEREEEFEMSLEL
RIDESRE - Atk - REFRBR A 2558
RE(LHIREABG =02 =) E3.7% °

S %5 o] g

#38 [o] g

BEREZMES  AEEEEEREER
Fof BSUFBERKREERR NRAFE -
U AGB AR F& E=1,721,000,000% 7t (2015
& : 2,034,800,000/8 70 ) » AL E Ik
TR ZBRAE - BB TE B
Bl & % ([ EBITDA | ) 4 520,600,000 /& JT
(20154 : 634,500,0005 7T) 1 FE4E A%
2518 2 EBITDAFIBE X A30.2% (20154 :
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for the Year attributable to the owners of the Company was
HK$256.2 million (2015: HK$504.3 million). Such decline was
mainly attributable to: i) a loss on fair value changes in investment
properties and an impairment loss on prepaid lease payments; ii)
an exchange loss on offshore traded Renminbi (“CNH”) deposits
held by the Group due to abrupt devaluation of Renminbi since
August 2015; and iii) a moderate decline of revenue due to
economic downturn. Basic earnings per share was HK$0.20
(2015: HK$0.39). The board of directors (the “Board” or
“Directors”) of the Company recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.052 (2015: HK$0.06) per share. Together
with the interim dividend of HK$0.028 (2015: HK$0.05) per share,
the total dividends per share for the Year are HK$0.08 (2015:
HK$0.11).

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

There was no change in capital structure during the Year. The
Group continued to maintain a strong cash position and a healthy
financial position, supported by its ongoing and stable cash
inflows. The Group funded its operations and capital expenditure
by cash generated internally from its operations.

As at 31 March 2016, aggregate of bank balances and cash,
short-term bank deposits and pledged bank deposits of the
Group amounted to HK$3,546.0 million (2015: HK$3,094.9
million), which are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Macau Patacas and CNH. To sustain its liquidity, the Group
pledged certain CNH deposits in favour of several banks as
security for obtaining additional banking facilities to the Group.

At the end of the Year, the carrying amount of the Group’s CNH
denominated monetary assets was about 10.6% of the total
assets. Although the Group recorded an exchange loss after non-
controlling interests of HK$74.9 million as a results of the abrupt
devaluation of Renminbi during the Year, the impact of such
exchange loss was partly mitigated by bank interest income after
non-controlling interests of HK$47.4 million. The Directors keep
closely monitoring exposure to foreign exchange risk as well as
interest rate risk, and if necessary will take appropriate actions to
mitigate these exposures.
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31.2%) c RRAREAB ARIEZANFE &7
256,200,000/ 7T (20154 : 504,300,000
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B 5L

Other than as described above, the Group did not experience any
significant exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations during
the Year.

The Group’s current assets and current liabilities as at 31
March 2016 were HK$3,871.8 million and HK$822.6 million
(2015: HK$3,506.6 million and HK$836.3 million), respectively.
Advances from non-controlling interests of a subsidiary of the
Company amounted to HK$132.0 million (2015: HK$150.0
million), which is denominated in Hong Kong dollars, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable at the discretion of non-controlling
interests and availability of surplus fund of the subsidiary.
Bank borrowings of HK$507.6 million (2015: HK$545.9 million),
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, is secured and interest
bearing at prevailing market rates and has a fixed repayment
term. During the Year, the Group partially repaid the advances
from non-controlling interests and bank borrowings in aggregate
of HK$56.3 million. As a result, the gearing ratio of the Group
(expressed as a percentage of total borrowings over total equity)
decreased to 12.5% (2015: 14.2%) as of 31 March 2016.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2016, assets with carrying values of
approximately HK$3.0 billion (2015: HK$4.9 billion) were pledged
to several banks as security for banking facilities, for a total of
approximately HK$1.2 billion (2015: HK$3.0 billion) granted to
the Group. In addition, the Group has a bank deposit of HK$0.3
million (2015: HK$0.3 million) pledged to a bank as security for
the use of ferry ticket equipment provided by a third party to the
Group.

B EXFratE SN REERANFEIL J|AT
EREAREX KBRS

MR2016F3A31H KEBZRHEE
N & afE o Rl A3,871,800,000 % Tt &
822,600,000 7. (20154 : 3,506,600,000
7 7T &% 836,300,000 7T ) © K B A A
A—HNBARZEERERZCBNRA
132,000,000 % 7t ( 2015 € : 150,000,000
BIT)  WEBTTHE S AEER - 2B NA
BIEERERATRZNB AR EGRRE
S IFIREE - R7718 B§#507,600,000/8 7T
(20154 : 545,900,000 7T ) » LA T &t
B AEER RRIHMHENEFERE
BEERY - RAFE AEBBEEL
DREBIFEREEZBRRRITEES
56,300,000/ 7T ° A It * 22016 F 3 A 31
B AEEzEZAELR(BMEEEBER
LAz o BOLtE) THZE12.5% (20154 -
14.2%) °

B A ik
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group currently operates two hotels, Grand Emperor Hotel
(“GEH”) and Inn Hotel Macau (“IHM”), in Macau.

GEH, the Group’s flagship project, on the Peninsula, is an
award-winning 26-storey gaming hotel with a gross floor area of
approximately 655,000 square feet and 307 guest rooms. It has
six gaming floors, covering over 130,000 square feet, and offers
slot machines as well as gaming tables in the gaming concourse
and the VIP room. With strong commitment to providing guests
with unparalleled entertainment and hospitality experiences, the
Group delivers consistently top quality services that translate into
high levels of customer satisfaction and loyalty.

IHM is a 17-storey hotel with a gross floor area of approximately
209,000 square feet, and 287 guest rooms. During the Year,
refurbishment of IHM was completed with upgraded room
furnishings, exterior walls and public areas, to create a more
comfortable and contemporary experience for guests. Through
extending coverage from the Peninsula to Taipa, the Group can
fully capture the potential of Macau’s hospitality market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B 5L

Gaming Revenue

The Group’s casino in GEH is operated under the gaming licence
held by Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A. During the Year,
the Group’s gaming revenue declined moderately to HK$1,451.5
million (2015: HK$1,731.1 million), accounting for 84.3% of the
Group’s total revenue. Nevertheless, the Group managed to
achieve a growth in revenue from the VIP room, leveraging its
effective customer segmentation strategy in prioritising on VIP
customers.

Gaming Concourse

The gross win in the gaming concourse fell to HK$1,593.9 million
(2015: HK$2,149.3 million). Revenue from the gaming concourse
was HK$888.7 million (2015: HK$1,194.1 million). The segment
accounted for 51.6% of the Group’s total revenue, compared
with 58.7% in the previous year. There were 67 tables (2015: 67
tables) in the gaming concourse. Average win per table per day
was HK$65,000 (2015: HK$87,000).

VIP Room

The Group self-managed a VIP room with 10 tables (2015: 10
tables), with the rolling amount of HK$22.4 billion (2015: HK$25.4
billion). Revenue from VIP room grew by 4.5% to HK$527.5
million (2015: HK$504.7 million), accounting for 30.7% of the
Group's total revenue. Average win per table per day increased to
HK$253,000 (2015: HK$243,000).

WA
AEBEZRRBIRE A E VIR - BB
BPEBERDERAAFAEZBEERE
BEK NAFE  AEBEBEEBKRA
& AR > 2= 1,451,500,000% 7T (20154
1,731,100,000 % 7Tt ) * fh A & B 82 4% A
843% - BEWML - BEEUNEERFAS
BHBERBEDARE  AEENEEEK
AGLARRH -

1% #

BRE 2 IER RSB T E1,593,900,000
7 7T (20154 @ 2,149,300,000% 7T ) ° 1§
¥ BE 2 W A /888,700,000 7T (2015 4F :
1,194,100,000/8 70 ) ° 7% 7 ZB1h AN £ B 48 UL
AZ51.6% ' MEFANEE8.7% ° BREEK
67 R R (20154 : 675K) - FHBREEFKX
BRI A65,00078 7T (20154 : 87,000/%8
JL) °

V=574

AEBATEE —HEEE  2A105K(2015
F 105K BV R - 5% 422,400,000,000
# 7T (2015 4 : 25,400,000,000% 7T ) » &
EE W AR 45% ZF 527,500,000 7 7T
(20154 : 504,700,000/ 7T) * I ANEE I
AZ30.7% > FHBEFXIEHWZENE
253,000/ 70 (20154 : 243,000 7T) °
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Slot Machines

The segment recorded a gross win of HK$77.7 million (2015:
HK$72.6 million), with a capacity of 188 slot seats (2015: 200 slot
seats). Segmental revenue was HK$35.3 million (2015 HK$32.2
million), accounting for 2.0% of the Group’s total revenue.
Average win per seat per day was HK$1,122 (2015: HK$1,030).

Hotel Revenue

The Group’s hotel revenue derives from the hospitality income of
GEH and IHM. The hotel revenue was HK$269.5 million (2015:
HK$303.7 million), accounting for 15.7% of the total revenue.

As of 31 March 2016, GEH and IHM provided 307 and 287 guest
rooms, respectively. During the Year, the average room rates of
GEH and IHM were HK$962 per night (2015: HK$1,258 per night)
and HK$491 per night (2015: HK$620 per night), with occupancy
rates of 89% (2015: 88%) and 85% (2015: 93%), respectively.
Combined room revenue was HK$99.6 million (2015: HK$128.8
million). Combined revenue from food and beverage was
HK$129.1 million (2015: HK$129.7 million), while the aggregate
amount of rental and other revenue was HK$40.8 million (2015:
HK$45.2 million).

VR

Z0E SRS 1B R UL 25 42 %5 77,700,000 7 7T
(2015%F : 72,600,000 7T) » iRt 1881EA
TR (20155 20018 B FHEBERL) » 95
I A %35,300,000/8 7T (20154 : 32,200,000
BIT)  (hAREEBRAZ2.0% » FHEFEAL
FRBEWZEA1,12287T(20154 : 1,030/
JL) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B 5L

OUTLOOK

The operating environment in Macau remains challenging
amid macroeconomic uncertainties, regulatory headwinds and
intensified competition. In face of tough conditions, the Group
strives to mitigate the adverse impact by optimising gaming mix,
maximising table utilisation and improving operating efficiency.
Over the years, the Group has built a reputation for providing
personal, exceptional and superior customer services to achieve
high levels of customer satisfaction. The modest growth in VIP
segment reflected the Group’s proven success in its capability for
offering unique gaming and hospitality experiences. The Group
remains committed to reinforcing its competitive edges in order
to be well-positioned to capture the full potential once the gaming
market rebounds.

Since late 2015, Macau gaming revenues showed signs of
stabilisation after massive correction for consecutive months.
The rising income levels among Chinese, together with
improving cross-border connectivity brought by infrastructure
enhancement such as the under-construction Hong Kong-
Zhuhai-Macau bridge, light-rail system connecting to Mainland
China and expansion of border gates in Macau, will strength
the competitiveness of Macau as a premier global gaming and
entertainment destination. The Group is cautiously optimistic
about the prospects for tourism and the gaming market in Macau
and continues to seek expansion opportunities in the city.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s number of employee was
1,234 (2015: 1,244). Total staff costs including the Directors’
remuneration and the other staff costs for the Year were HK$449.0
million (2015: HK$453.3 million). Employees’ remuneration
was determined in accordance with individual’s responsibility,
competence and skills, experience and performance as well
as market pay level. Staff benefits include medical and life
insurance, retirement benefits and other competitive fringe
benefits. To provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the
Company adopted a share option scheme on 15 August 2013 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) in view of the lapse of the old share
option scheme adopted on 2 September 2002. Particulars of the
Share Option Scheme are set out in the section headed “Share
Options” from pages 134 to 136.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B g B

The report aims to provide the Group’s stakeholders with an
overview of the Group’s efforts regarding environmental, social
and governance (ESG) impacts arising from its daily operations.

RELATIONSHIP WITH MAJOR
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group continues to engage with its employees, customers,
suppliers, institutional investors, shareholders, and other
stakeholders through different channels to develop mutually
beneficial relationship and promote sustainability.

Employees are remunerated equitably and competitively. Details
of continuing training and development opportunities provided to
them are set out in the “Development and training” section below.

The Group is committed to provide full range of excellent
customer services to its customers and has attained a number of
prestigious awards in the industry. For details, please refer to the
“Product responsibility and customer services” section below.

The Group uses suppliers that reflect its values and commitment
and maintains a solid relationship with them. For details, please
refer to the “Supply chain management” section below.

The Company maintains ongoing dialogues with its institutional
investors and shareholders. For details, please refer to the
section “Communication with Shareholders” on page 59 of the
Corporate Governance Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Environmental policies and performance

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate
governance, and aim to integrate corporate social responsibility
(“CSR”) into its business strategy and management approach.
During the Year, the Group has continued to use its best
endeavours to protect the environment from its business activities
and workplace. The Group also educates its employees on
their awareness in promoting a “green” environment. The Group
seeks to identify and manage environment impacts attributable
to its operational activities, in order to minimise these impacts
if possible. Various measures were adopted to reduce energy
and other resource use, minimise waste and increase recycling
and promote environmental protection in its supply chain and
marketplace. Details of such measures are set out below:
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Use of resources

Global warming and climate change are among the major
environmental problems in every part of the world. In the hotel
operation, air conditioning and lighting are the main contributors
to the Group’s carbon footprint. In recent years, the Group
stepped up its efforts in environment initiatives to maximise
energy conservation, by promoting efficient use of resources and
adopting green technologies. The Group has implemented the
following environmental initiatives, and achieved positive results,
with obvious improvements in energy efficiency:

— Reusing waste heat, generated from the heat recovery air-
conditioning system, for the boiler;

— Adopting cooling tower systems to maximise chiller energy
efficiency;

—  Minimising use of chiller units during night-time;

— Using lift energy-saving devices;

—  Switching off some of the passenger lifts during non-peak
hours;

— Installing LED lamps;

—  Ensuring proper steam leakage and insulation management;

—  Shutting-off lighting and air-conditioning when a guest room
is not in use;

— Installing thermostats with outdoor temperature sensors, to
maintain and control room temperature at a desired energy
efficient level; and

— Installing ventilation fan controls in kitchen areas.

To identify energy efficiency opportunities, the Group measures
and records the energy consumption intensity from time to time.

During the Year, GEH received the Macao Green Hotel Silver
Award 2013-2016, organised by the Macau Environmental
Protection Bureau and the Macau Government Tourist Office.
The recognition demonstrates the Group’s commitment and
continuous efforts in environmental protection by adopting green
initiatives in the hotel.
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The environment and natural resources

Creating a paperless working environment not only reduces
environmental damage but also fits commercial goals, as it
can save physical space, facilitate information sharing via IT
networks, and reduce complicated documentation procedures.
In recent years, the Group has also implemented paperless
processing in its internal communications, including for
employees' time sheets, payrolls and finance. Moreover, duplex
printing and copying has become the norm within the Group,
greatly reducing paper consumption and saving costs. Data
on printing is regularly collected and assessed, to monitor the
efficiency of the paperless environment.

Additionally, the Group incorporated various environmental
initiatives in its hotel operation to minimise waste generation. For
instance, shower gel bottles are reused after special hygiene
treatment.

Externally, by the introduction of electronic means of corporate
communications (including annual reports and interim reports,
etc.) to registered shareholders (since 2011) and non-registered
shareholders (since 2015), the Company highly recommends
the shareholders to take advantage of accessing its corporate
communications through the websites of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Company
instead of receiving hard copy documents. This paperless
practice helps protect the environment, as well as save costs
on stationery, printing and administrative charges etc. for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders. The adoption
of such practice largely reduced the printing of corporate
communications. In financial year 2015/2016, roughly 90% of
individual shareholders received financial reports of the Company
via electronic means.
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WORKPLACE QUALITY
Workforce
The Group believes that a motivated and balanced workforce is

crucial for building a sustainable business model and delivering
long-term returns.

As at 31 March 2016, the permanent employees of the Group
totalled 1,234, working in the hotel and gaming operations in
Macau.

The age distribution of the Group’s workforce (as at 31 March
2016) are summarised below:
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The Group has a diverse workforce in terms of gender and
age, providing a variety of ideas and levels of competency that
contribute to the Group’s success. The Group is firmly committed
to gender equality, and therefore particularly encourages female
participation in the Board, and at managerial and operational
levels. Women represent approximately 55% of the total
employees in the Group.

The management believes that people are important assets for
the Group, and remains committed to attracting and retaining
talent with diverse backgrounds for achieving sustainable
growth. As at 31 March 2016, approximately 33% of the staff
have worked for the Group for five years or more. Service Awards
are presented to those staff who have contributed for five years.
Staff turnover rate among managerial positions is relatively low,
reflecting a high level of employee satisfaction and engagement
with the Group.
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Health and safety

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, healthy and hygienic
environment for its staff and guests. Adequate arrangements,
training courses and guidelines are implemented to ensure the
working environment is healthy and safe. An office memo on
occupational health and safety is issued to each staff member
as they commence employment. Workshops and seminars on
different topics were held during the Year, to present the latest
information and raise awareness of occupational health and
safety issues for employees.

The Group proactively identifies potential occupational
hazards to reduce staff exposure to accidents. For example,
all restaurants staff are required to wear antiskid shoes and
anti-cutting gloves to prevent injuries. Every case of injury (if
any) is required to be reported to the Group Human Resources
Department and be individually assessed under the internal
guideline procedures. The Group is pleased to report that the rate
of accidents and injuries during the Year was extremely low.

The Group values the health and well-being of staff. In order to
provide employees with health coverage, staff are entitled to
benefits including medical and life insurance as well as other
competitive fringe benefits.

Development and training

The Group recognises the importance of skilled and professionally
trained employees to its business growth and future success. Staff
are encouraged to pursue educational or training opportunities that
achieve personal growth and professional development. Various
training courses are regularly conducted to promote occupational
safety, personal and food hygiene, fire and emergency response,
first aid and customer serving skills.

The Group also provides professional training programmes to its
frontline staff under the Macao Occupational Skills Recognition
System (“MORS”) certification scheme, to enhance their
occupational proficiencies. As at 31 March 2016, around 148
frontline staff had obtained MORS certifications in accordance
with their professions: assistant cook, Chinese dim sum and
cuisine, bartender, bell attendant, front desk agent, guest
relations officer, room attendant, security officer, waiter/waitress
of western restaurant and Chinese restaurant. During the Year,
the Group dedicated around 18,765 hours to staff training,
representing approximately 15 hours per employee.
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The Group believes that maintaining a work-life balance/is
essential for sustainability and a sound body and mind for
every employee. To support employees in maintaining work-life
balance, the Group actively provides a variety of charitable and
staff activities for employees, such as sports day, voluntary visits,
rural outings and team-building activities. All these activities help
to strengthen relationships between employees, and promote a
healthy and harmonious working environment.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply chain management

The Group values mutually beneficial and longstanding
relationship with its suppliers. The Group works closely with a
number of suppliers in providing a range of hospitality goods,
including guestroom consumables, tableware, furniture and
food and beverage. The selection of suppliers is based on
criteria such as quality, price, delivery timeliness, supplier’s
capability and experience, with preference be given to those who
demonstrate their environmental commitment.

Product responsibility and customer services

The Group delivers consistently high quality customer services by
its experienced and well-trained customer services executives.
During the Year, GEH was granted “TripAdvisor Certificate of
Excellence Award 2015” by TripAdvisor, the world’s largest travel
site, in recognition of its outstanding hospitality performance.
GEH had also included into TripAdvisor’s “Hall of Fame 2011-
2015”, an accolade for winners who earned Certificate of
Excellence for five consecutive years.
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Protection of data

The Group places the utmost importance on protecting the
privacy of its customers, partners and staff in the collection,
processing and use of their personal data. The Group adheres
to the applicable data protection regulations and ensures
appropriate technical measures are in place to protect personal
data against unauthorised use or access. The Group also ensures
that customers’ personal data is securely kept and processed
only for the purpose for which it has been collected. Staff are
provided with adequate training in compliance with applicable
laws on data privacy protection, to strengthen their awareness of
safeguarding personal data.

Protection of intellectual property

The Group builds up and protects its intellectual property rights
by prolonged use and registration of domain names and various
trademarks including “Emperor’. The Group has applied or
registered trademarks in various classes in Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland China and other relevant jurisdictions. In addition,
trademarks and domain names of the Group are being constantly
monitored and renewed upon their expiration.

Anti-corruption/Anti-money laundering

In order to build up an ethical corporate culture and practices,
the Group has established policies and procedures for anti-
corruption and anti-money laundering.

Employees were given induction briefing organised by the Group
or seminars regularly organised by the Independent Commission
Against Corruption of Hong Kong and the Commission Against
Corruption of Macau on anti-corruption while employees
responsible for carrying out transactions, initiating or establishing
business relationships have undergone anti-money laundering
underling training. The Group has also adopted a whistleblowing
system and procedures for all levels and operations under
the Group to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Group such as
misconduct and malpractice. The above polices and procedures
can be found in the employee handbook and the Company’s
intranet.

During the Year, no legal case regarding corrupt practices
was brought against the Group or its employees. Also, no
whistleblowing concerning a criminal offence or misconduct was
reported.

R

rEBERS  RENMEAMERER A1
BHEEINEAERBRET  BRERSE
MALBRTHESENER - AEBBREKE
HERANERREEN I BRRLEE 2 KM
it REEABRRRRERER BT
B ARBETEREFEAENERE2ZE
WRTF - WRSRKERIETENRERER -
AEBREBERELRERNEREFMET
REZTEHEI - AREEREHFREBAAER
M -

PR B ik 72
AEEEBHAEARERARRERNE
(RERE BRI RRELABERE - A%
BERZ EERNEEEEE R P E
P 3t e Lt 4E1 ) ) [ O 22 R A A A
o AEBEERE A BB IR
JE MBS -

B 1k 35, B Ik U 2R %

RV -ECLRBREAXERESR  AEHE
BRI ES M IERREZBRERIE
J%: o

BTIRAEEER 2 A\BEN ST EREK
NE RPN Z E HIR N 2 T 50 2 X
BIEESZER  RKBEETRS  BH
FETEHERLBETHEZ2EN DR RE
Bl - AEBERRA—ERBHERERF -
WBEBEARBZAARBEEEBARPIEY
HEMAEERAEEZAEEE(WTE
MAETR)ZEE - B BEREFAHE
BTFMEARRBANEETILI -

RAFE  SEHAEEKEBTHEST
RIEHEFOERERM - R - REXER
ERTRAETRZER -

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED  JrE it 4430 )5 A P2 7



Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s Corporate Governance Committee is delegated
by the Board to monitor and review its policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements such
as “Legal Framework for the Operations of Casino Games of
Fortune” (Law No. 16/2001) and “Labour Relations Law” (Law No.
7/2008) which have significant impact on the Group. Updates
on the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units from
time to time.

The Group holds relevant required licences for provision of
services, such as Junket Promoter Licence issued by the
Gaming Inspection and Coordination Bureau of Macau SAR,
Administrative Licence issued by Macau Government Tourist
Office for entertainment and hospitality services in Macau, etc.
and the management must ensure that the conduct of business is
in conformity with the applicable laws and regulations.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group is committed to the improvement of community
well-being and social services. Aligning with the mission
“From the Community, To the Community”, the Group has
formulated various community activities spanning elderly
welfare and hospice care services, healthcare, education,
sports, environmental conservation, and helping underprivileged
children. The Group’s management team plays an important
role in mobilising staff to join all these activities, which are held
in tandem with its commitment to sustainable development.
The Group believes that by encouraging staff to participate in
a wide range of charitable events, concern for the community
will be raised, inspiring more people to take part in serving the
community.

During annual participation in an outbound volunteering
activity organised by Emperor Foundation, staff joined a tour
to Hebei Province of Mainland China, in October 2015 for a
four-day service in Albert Yeung Sau Shing Charity Foundation
(Xiongzhou) Elderly Care Centre and Albert Yeung Sau Shing
Charity Foundation Baoding Child Care Centre. They later made
their first move in 2016 in January to Haven of Hope Woo Ping
Care & Attention Home, sharing their early Chinese New Year
wishes to the elderly there, with financial support to furnish the
Rehabilitation Room with new equipment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

EAP R BN
AEEBZL¥EEREECSHESRTEZR ' N
ERNBRAEBSR R EREBBEERER
ZERMBRER  fINEAEBBEERY
EM(RBSFBEULEEENE)CEE
5% 0 16/2001) RAEB B EEEE)OERRIR -
7/2008) - BB T R L B S T EE
Fri@pEeRE - RAIBERZEFHE ©

AREEFBRHERM T 2 EBEEE - flin
BB RITRERFBYERHARREN
RPN AR MORFIBT IR B RE N =
BRER(RFIREIRERBIERS)E - M
EEERERAREERDTEER LR
N

2 HLAE I 5 B)
AREEBRNRELERN ML SRS - A
[BFELE  AHELE RED  AEED
EEBUHEREDY  BRERERMNMEZKEE
R &2 - HE  BEF REMEPHER
RE - ZFRPEANEE 2 AIRFEER A
AIEEEA  AEEEREEEREDHESH
HERBHTHETEZAR -  REEME -
HEET2HEEZNEZLRDHIES LIES
UrRZBIR MBEEZALELER -

EHEEZZEESN2015F10 AR 2 FFEIN
BEIEed  ETHEBEIFEAMBEILE
Heh o B AKX - BERBIEXKE
ZHS (M) ZFREPLRIBGZHE A&
ZHSRERERFI - BEEIEA2016FH
BEEEEE EIMMANIGEERYF
BER MEEEFEF  WHRTEERGE
BB HEARERBEEREINRIE -

2015,/2016 4%



“ENVII(ONMENT soéIAL :“AND GOVERNANCE REP@RT )
P - ?iﬁﬁ&{ﬁiﬁﬁb

Other than services to the elderly, the Group has also supported B AREREIN » REB I3 [ LK E
“Oxfam Rice Event”. Staff members helped run a sale counter in B ATE | - EI BN EE L REE=#
the street to raise fund for Oxfam. AR ESER -

During the Year, the Group has been named as 5 Years Plus E’\$$f REEEFRSFPIUsEARMA
Caring Company, recognising its ongoing commitment to fulfilling A7 » MR EBI N ELSETHNEA
its corporate social responsibilities. G o

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited
REBWAEERLT

Mission
e

oo o commerity, aployess and e enirosmer:

samnmimnan . An s sumsnoee

zw

i b ~ae s sl
Ll




BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGERS
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(CHAIRPERSON)

LUK SIU MAN, SEMON, aged 60, the Chairperson of the
Company. She joined the Company in March 2000. Ms. Luk is
also the non-executive director and chairperson of Emperor
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163) (“Emperor
International”), which is an indirect holding company of the
Company. She worked in the banking industry for almost 10
years. She graduated from The University of Toronto with a
Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

WONG CHI FAI, aged 60, the Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wong joined the Company in 1991. He has been
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth
and development and overseeing the financial management of
the Group. He is also the Chairman of the Executive Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company
as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
is also a director of two listed companies in Hong Kong, namely
Emperor International and Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited
(Stock Code: 887) (“Emperor W&J”), both being associated
companies of the Company. He was previously a director of
another Hong Kong listed company, New Media Group Holdings
Limited (“New Media”) (now known as Evergrande Health
Industry Group Limited (Stock Code: 708) and resigned on 27
March 2015. Having over 30 years of finance and management
experience, Mr. Wong has diversified experience in different
businesses ranging from manufacturing to property investment
and development, hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch and
jewellery, financial and securities services, artiste management,
entertainment production as well as media and publication. Mr.
Wong is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA, aged 53, the Executive Director
of the Company. Ms. Fan joined the Company in 1991. She has
been responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development as well as overseeing different functions
within the Group. She is also the Chairperson of the Corporate
Governance Committee, a member of the Executive Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company as well as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Fan is also a director
of Emperor International and Emperor W&J. She was previously
a director of New Media and resigned on 27 March 2015. Having
over 27 years of corporate management experience, Ms. Fan
possesses diversified experience in different businesses ranging
from property investment and development, hotel and hospitality,
financial and securities services, retailing of watch and jewellery,
artiste management, entertainment production as well as media
and publication. Ms. Fan is a lawyer by profession in Hong Kong
and a qualified accountant, and holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

CHAN WILING, YVONNE, aged 51, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
September 2004. She is the Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Chan is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. She previously worked in two international
accounting firms, Touche Ross & Co. and Ernst & Young and
engaged in accounting, auditing and information security fields
for 20 years. She graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University majoring in accountancy and obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Heriot-Watt University in
Scotland.
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YU KING TIN, aged 49, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2013. He is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance Committee
of the Company. Mr. Yu has worked in various organizations
including international certified public accountants firms and
listed companies in Hong Kong. He is currently one of the senior
management in the finance department of a conglomerate in
Hong Kong. He was previously a director of another Hong Kong
listed company, Tanrich Financial Holdings Limited (now known
as Southwest Securities International Securities Limited) (Stock
Code: 812) and resigned on 27 January 2015. Mr. Yu graduated
from the Peking University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Law and
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Master’'s Degree
in Corporate Finance. He is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a Certified
Tax Advisor and a member of the Society of Registered Financial
Planner.

KWAN SHIN LUEN, SUSANNA, aged 49, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2015. She is the Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well
as a member of the Audit Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Ms. Kwan is also the independent
non-executive director of Hypebeast Limited (Stock Code: 8359).
Ms. Kwan was previously a director of New Media and resigned
on 27 March 2015. Ms. Kwan has a legal practice focusing on
corporate/commercial and corporate finance matters in Hong
Kong for more than 20 years, including mergers & acquisitions,
regulatory compliance, public offerings, private placement of
securities and open offers, joint ventures and securities related
legislation. Ms. Kwan graduated from the London School of
Economics (London). She practices and specialises as a
corporate finance and legal and compliance lawyer.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EHGHRE

The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 65. The dividends paid during the Year and
proposed to be paid for the Year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK$0.028 per share for the Year
(2014/2015: HK$0.05 per share), amounting to HK$36,471,000
(2014/2015: HK$65,127,000), was paid to the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.052 per share (2015: HK$0.06 per share) for the Year
amounting to HK$67,732,000 (2015: HK$78,153,000) to those
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
on 24 August 2016 (Wednesday), subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 16 August 2016 (Tuesday) (“2016 AGM”).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND
PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5
to 13. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 54 to 56 and notes 5 and 6(b) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Company that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.
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In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policy and
performance, key relationships with the Group’s key stakeholders
as well as compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have significant impact on the Group are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report from pages 14 to
22.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five years is set out on page 147 of the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties on a market basis at HK$664,200,000. A decrease
in fair value of HK$67,800,000 has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Details of changes in the investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of investment properties of the Group as at 31 March
2016 is set out on page 148.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment at a cost of HK$58,174,000.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out on page 68.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 31 March 2016 represent the accumulated profits amounting
to HK$233,092,000 (2015: HK$161,500,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (Chairperson)

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chi Fai
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne

Mr. Yu King Tin

Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna (elected on 18 August 2015)
Ms. Wan Choi Ha (retired on 18 August 2015)

Biographical details of the Directors and senior managers as at
the date of this report are set out from pages 23 to 25. Details of
Directors’ remunerations are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Mr. Yu King Tin (“Mr. David Yu”) and Ms. Chan Wiling,
Yvonne (“Ms. Yvonne Chan”) shall retire by rotation at the 2016
AGM. Mr. David Yu, being eligible, offers himself for re-election
while Ms. Yvonne Chan who served the Company as Independent
Non-executive Director (“INED”) for more than 9 years, although
being eligible, does not offer herself for re-election.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2016 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are
provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and
officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect
of potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings
that may be brought against the Directors and the directors of the
Group respectively.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors adopted by the Company (“EEH Securities Code”)
were as follows:

(A) Long position interests in the Company
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Note:

These Shares were held by Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Holdings Limited (“Emperor E Hotel Holdings”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor International. Emperor
International is a company with its shares listed in Hong Kong
and as at 31 March 2016, approximately 74.7% of its issued
share capital was held by Emperor International Group Holdings
Limited (“Emperor International Group Holdings”). Emperor
International Group Holdings is wholly owned by Albert Yeung
Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”) which is held by STC
International Limited (“STC International”) in trust of The Albert
Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”), a discretionary trust
set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”).
By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung as founder of
the AY Trust, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests in the same
Shares.

(B) Long position interests in associated corporation
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(ii) Debentures

16 P it
Name of
associated
Name of Director corporation
HREA R W6 3 10 44
Ms. Semon Luk Emperor International
PEZ + 52 FFR
Notes:

1. Emperor International and Emperor W&J are companies with
their shares listed in Hong Kong. These respective shares
were ultimately owned by the AY Trust whose founder is Dr.
Albert Yeung. By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Albert
Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests in the same
shares.

2. These debentures were ultimately owned by the AY Trust
whose founder is Dr. Albert Yeung. By virtue of being the
spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed
interests in the same debentures.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the
Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme on 15 August
2013 in view of the lapse of its old share option scheme on 2
September 2012. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. No share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme since its
adoption.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at no time
during the Year was the Company, any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or
their spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, so far as is known to any Director or chief
executives of the Company, the persons or corporations (other
than a Director or a chief executive of the Company) who had, or
were deemed or taken to have an interest and short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company were as follows:
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Long positions in the Shares

I & e T <

Capacity/
Nature of interests

L4/ Eliyd

Interest in a controlled
corporation

REAE B A E T 2 HEat

Name of Shareholder

JB 3R 4 1

Emperor International

Interest in a controlled
corporation

RER A 2 2

AY Holdings
15 X PREE SRR

Trustee of the AY Trust
AY Trust £5EA

STC International

Founder of the AY Trust
AY Trust Z&IxZ A

Dr. Albert Yeung
HiEL

These Shares were the same shares as those set out under Section
(A) of “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Securities” above.

Note:

All interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31
March 2016, no short positions were recorded in the SFO register
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, the Directors or
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any person
or corporation (other than the Directors and chief executives of
the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have, any
interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates was interested in any business which was considered
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company:

(i) Provision of services in relation to Grand
Emperor Hotel

On 19 February 2010, Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an agreement (“Agreement”) with Sociedade de Jogos
de Macau, S.A., (“SJM”), a company incorporated under the
laws of Macau, for the provision of services or obligations
comprising the management services and the promotion
services to SUM by Tin Hou from 1 October 2009 until the
termination: (i) by either party or on the expiration of SUM’s
gambling license under the Gaming Concession Contract
on 31 March 2020; or (ii) any earlier termination thereof; or
(iii) winding up or cessation of business of either party. In
consideration for the provision of services, Tin Hou together
with the nominated junket promoter which is a fellow
subsidiary of Tin Hou and wholly owned by the Company
shall be entitled to a share of the gross win and gross loss
in respect of the monthly operating performance of the
gaming area located at the Grand Emperor Hotel and bear all
necessary operational expenses in relation to the operation
of the gaming area.

SJM is principally engaged in gaming business in Macau
and is one of the six concessionaires/subconcessionaires
licensed to carry on casino operations in Macau. SJM has
a 19.99% equity interest in Luck United Holdings Limited, a
company indirectly owned as to 60% by the Company, and
was therefore a connected person of the Company within the
meaning of the Listing Rules by virtue of being a substantial
shareholder of a significant subsidiary of the Company.

During the Year, the Group’s net receipt under the
Agreement amounted to HK$1,280,458,375.
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(ii) Leasing of the Group’s hotel property for the

operation of the counterparty

H AR 4 ) 2 3 B P S 00 3B Ol A SR

Date of
agreement

Tk H
(D/M/Y)
(H/H, %)

30/6/2014

Name of
counterparty

Ey A

EWJ Macau
Company Limited
(“EWJ Macau”)

EWJRFIFR AR
(TEWJEF |)

EWJ Macau
EWJIEFS

31/3/2015

Note:

Leased premises

location

Fiv i AL 40 3 b B

Shop No. 5, G/F.,
Grand Emperor Hotel
251-292D, Avenida,
Commercial De
Macau, Macau

BPIREE KRG
251-292D%%
2 IR
b NG

Shop Nos. 1to 4, G/F.,

Grand Emperor Hotel,

251-292D Avenida
Commercial De
Macau

SRPIRER B
251-292D%F
I B IR 4 H [
TN 1245748

EWJ Macau is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor
W&J. As at 31 March 2016, Emperor
as to approximately 52.6% by the AY

W&J was indirectly owned
Trust.

Amount of rental
received during
the Year

AAEE N B4
HKS$
WL
1 July 2014 -
30 June 2017:
Effective rental:
HK$187,200 per
month (early

terminated on
31 March 2016)

20147 A1 %2017
F6H30H :

ERAE 88
187,200 7T
(R2016%E3H31H
RERI)

2,246,000

1 April 2015 -
31 March 2018:
Effective rental:
HK$324,888.89
per month

20154 Q1A=
201843 A31H :

EREE:SA
324,888.89/8 7T

3,899,000

Hfet - EWSRFIAEZEERKRE 2 HESEW
BAR) - R201643A318 » HE2iEHK

KRB HBAY TrustfZ B £52.6% -
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COMPLIANCE WITH DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS

Save as the “Rental income from a related company” in the
amount of HK$6,145,000 for the Year as shown in note 34 —
“Related Party Transactions” to the consolidated financial
statements which constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under the Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all
other transactions as shown in the note thereon are connected
transactions exempted from announcement, reporting, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the above
connected transactions.

AUDITOR’S LETTER ON CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Review of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” (the “Auditor’s Letter”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group (“Disclosed CCTs”) from
pages 34 to 35 of this annual report in accordance with Main
Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the Auditor’'s Letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
INEDs have reviewed the Disclosed CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter
and have confirmed that these transactions have been entered
into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(iii) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract which is significant to which the Company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of the independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Executive Directors were decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link
to business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current best practice), the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics. The
INEDs are paid fees in line with market practice. No individual
should determine his or her own remuneration.

Employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level.
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Remuneration package includes, as the case may be, basic
salary, Directors’ fees, housing allowances, contribution to
pension schemes, discretionary bonus relating to the profit of
the Group and individual performance, ad hoc rewards, share
options and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical
and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers represented 87.2% of
the Group’s total revenue. The largest customer accounted for
approximately 84.6% of the Group’s total revenue and is the
operator of VIP room, mass market hall and slot machine hall who
paid fee for the services rendered by the Group.

The aggregate amount of purchases and services received
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers represented less
than 30% of total purchases and services received by the Group
during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholders which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, had a beneficial interest in the share capital of any of the
above major customers and suppliers of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 40 to 62.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2016 AGM to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Luk Siu Man, Semon
Chairperson

Hong Kong
22 June 2016
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company within a sensible
framework. The Company has fully complied with all the
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the Year.

THE BOARD
Board Composition

As at 31 March 2016, the Board comprised six Directors, with
one Non-executive Director who is also the Chairperson of the
Company, two Executive Directors and three INEDs. The Board
considers that this composition ensures a strong independent
element with a balance of power and influence between
individuals on the Board. The biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 23 to 25 of this annual report under the “Biographies
of Directors and Senior Managers” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive

Ms. Semon Luk, has been appointed as the Chairperson since
2000 and provides leadership for the Board. With the support of
the company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”),
she ensures that all directors receive, in a timely manner,
adequate information and are properly briefed on issues arising
at the board meeting. She is responsible for ensuring that the
Board works effectively and preforms its responsibilities. She
holds meetings with the INEDs at least once a year.

Both Mr. Wong Chi Fai (“Mr. Bryan Wong”) and Ms. Vanessa
Fan, are responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with valuable experience and
expertise in legal, accounting, auditing or information security
in business areas who contribute impartial view and make
independent judgment on issues to be discussed at Board
meetings. Each of them is appointed for an initial term of one year
and shall continue thereafter on a yearly basis subject to early
termination with written notice being served by either party. The
terms of the INEDs are also subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election provision under the Bye-Laws of the Company.
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The Company has received a confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs. The Board considers each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The INEDs have been expressly identified
as such in all corporate communications of the Company that
disclose the names of Directors.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and
promotion of the success of the Group by directing and
supervising its affairs in the best interests of the Company and by
formulating strategic directions and monitoring the financial and
management performance of the Group.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Directors of the Board
and has delegated powers and authorities to carry out the day-to-
day management and operation of the Group, formulate business
policies and make decision on key business issues and exercise
power and authority delegated by the Board from time to time.

There is a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to and
delegated by the Board. The Board had given clear directions to
the management that certain matters (including the followings)
must be reserved to the Board:

Publication of final and interim results of the Company
Dividend distribution or other distribution

Major issues of treasury policy, accounting policy and
remuneration policy

Major changes to group corporate structure or Board
composition requiring notification by announcements
Publication of the announcements for notifiable transactions
and non-exempted connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions

Non-exempted connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions

Notifiable transactions requiring Shareholders’ approval
Capital restructuring and issue of new securities of the
Company

Financial assistance to Directors
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Induction, Support and Professional Development
of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of equity/business interest of the Group
and such induction materials will also be provided to newly
appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.
All Directors have been updated on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure
agreed by the Board to ensure Directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in order to assist
them to perform their duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the Code on Directors’ training. During the
Year, each Director has participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/reading materials on the
following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and provided a record of training to the Company.

Name of Directors

ERZHE - CRMEHERER

PBESEHCERHEEBETIETZIRENR
B BRAREFZHEEEMN MBS - N&E
B ik EB R E BT ZEEESE
B MRAEESEZER/EFR - TER
REARAEERHZEREANER - 28E
EZER MR EMBERESE BR &M
LRESEMEN - EMEERED - R0
BNEHREPEREAFRZEBH EFE
ERERF  UMBEREFTEEZBELTE
EEBRESKEUEXELUGBIRER
ARREITHE - BERBAANRBIEE -

EEwR RFCETEHESEIZTA
RXEA.6.50K - RAFE - =REEFE2HE
SEEXER TAR/LFEEBEATERZ
Ee  BEME  NBERREH®RE ZM
L BB - WE AR RIRHIFIIA S o

Topics on training covered otes)

JFf 100 25 2 35 9l = 1 i)

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon e NE 2+
Mr. Wong Chi Fai EEBAA
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa SBEE LT
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne pRER L+
Mr. Yu King Tin REXREAE
Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna Mgt

Notes Mt it -

(a) corporate governance 1> ¥%E4
(b) regulatory &
(c) finance 817

(d) industry-specific 1731874
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EFeREZHAMETMNER(BRYE -
X% KBAEMER MEHBE) -

Relationship between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other materials/relevant relations)
between each other.

ERZRE
ARTERREET QL REY 2R F UM
B 2 R -

s i ) RV LK N

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment

The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is set

out below:

No. of meeting attended/held
ik /B ARy

AEREEHESHZBEREINLT

Corporate
Audit  Remuneration ~ Nomination  Governance Executive General
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee meeting
Name of Directors HHERE iMERE RAZEE DXERZHE UHZRE N |
Non-executive Director FonES
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Bt 6  NATEE  NATER  NATERE  NATEER  NATEE 1
Executive Directors HrEs
Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Mote 1) EBEE (1) 66 NATER 1 NATEE  NATES 33 i
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa BRELT (W) 66  NATEE  NATER il il 3 1
(Note 2)
Independent BUF4ES
Non-executive Directors
Ms. Chan Wiing, Yvonne (Note 3) BERLL (H:23) /6 33 1 1 NARER  NATEE 1
Mr. Yu King Tin (Note 5 RERRE (hs) /6 33 11 NATER 1" NATEE 1
Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna BREERT (Wi4k6) 505 2 NATEE  NATEE O NATMEE  NATER  NATEE
(Note 4 and 6)
Ms. Wan Choi Ha, Noven (Note 7) BRERT (hH7) il 11 NATER i 11 NATEE 1
Total number of meetings held OEEE 6 3 1 1 1 3 1
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Notes:

1. Chairperson of Executive Committee

2. Chairperson of Corporate Governance Committee
3.  Chairperson of Remuneration Committee

4. Chairperson of Nomination Committee

5. Chairman of Audit Committee

6. Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna (“Ms. Susanna Kwan”) was elected
as Director in the annual general meeting held on 18 August 2015
(2015 AGM”) and was appointed as the chairperson of the Nomination
Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee.

7. Ms. Wan Choi Ha, Noven retired as Director in the 2015 AGM and
automatically ceased to act as the chairperson of the Nomination
Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee.

Upon reviewing (a) the annual confirmation of time commitment
given by each Director; (b) the directorships and major
commitments of each Director; and (c) the attendance rate of
each Director on full Board and their respective Board committee
meetings, the Board is satisfied that all Directors have spent
sufficient time in performing their responsibilities during the Year.

BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEEDINGS

Regular board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the meeting in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent
to the Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board
meeting. Board papers together with all appropriate, accurate,
clear complete and reliable information are generally sent to all
Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting and Board
committee meeting to enable the Directors to make informed
decision.

Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board meetings and
Board committee meetings, drafted in sufficient details by the
secretary of the meetings, were circulated to the Directors for
their comment and record respectively. Originals of such minutes,
being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.
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If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, that
Director will abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution
in which he/she or any of his/her associates have a material
interest and he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at
the Board meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have been
delegated by the Board to the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and Executive Committee.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are INEDs.
Clear written terms of reference of all the Board Committees are
given to the respective members of these Committees. Details of
the Board Committees are set out below:

1. Audit Committee (set up on 15 September 2004)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
David Yu (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Yvonne Chan
and Ms. Susanna Kwan.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee which was re-adopted on 18 November 2015
in light of the amendment of Listing Rules, is available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Audit Committee is primarily responsible for (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
(b) approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor; and (c) reviewing financial information and
overseeing the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee held
three meetings during the Year.
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A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance-in-charge and/
or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit process
and the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of the annual
financial statements for the financial year ended 31
March 2015 and the interim financial statements for the
six months ended 30 September 2015;

i. reviewed with senior management and finance-in-
charge the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group;

ii. annual review of the non-exempted continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Year;

iv. approved the audit plan for the financial year ended 31
March 2016, reviewed the independence of the external
auditor and approved the engagement of external
auditor;

v. recommended the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor; and

vi. recommended the Board to adopt the revised terms
of reference of the Audit Committee in light of the
amendments in Listing Rules regarding additional role
of the Audit Committee to review the risk management
system of the Company.
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Remuneration Committee (set up on 11 July
2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Yvonne Chan (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. David Yu, both being INEDs, and Mr. Bryan Wong,
being an Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Remuneration Committee is primarily
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on (a)
the Company’s policies and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management; (b) the remuneration
packages of Non-executive Directors; and (c) the specific
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management. Details of the remuneration of
each of the Directors for the Year are set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements. The Remuneration
Committee held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed and recommended the Board to approve the
Directors’ fees;

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management and
made recommendation to the Board; and

iii. reviewed the remuneration policy for Directors and
senior management and made recommendation to the
Board.
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Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March
2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Susanna Kwan (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Ms. Yvonne Chan, both being INEDs, and Ms. Vanessa
Fan, being an Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure,
size and diversity of the Board; (b) determining the policy
for the nomination of Directors and identifying suitable
candidates for directorship; (c) assessing the independence
of INEDs; (d) reviewing the time commitment of each
Director; (e) reviewing the Board Diversity Policy; and (f)
making recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to the Board or selection of individual nominated
for directorships, or on appointment or re-appointment of
Directors. The Nomination Committee held one meeting
during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed structure, size and diversity of the Board;

ii. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

iii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on their
time commitment in performing the duties as Directors;

and

iv. recommended the Board on the nomination of Directors
for election and re-election at the 2015 AGM.
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As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives to the business nature of the Company.
Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including gender, age, length
of service, profession qualification and experience. The
Nomination Committee will also assess the merits and
contribution of any Director proposed for re-election or
any candidate nominated to be appointed as Director and
against the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board that would complement the existing
Board.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28
March 2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of five
members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the
Committee), being an Executive Director, Mr. David Yu and
Ms. Susanna Kwan, both being INEDs, a representative
from company secretarial function and a representative
from finance and accounts function. The specific written
terms of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee
is available on the Company’s website. The primary duties
of the Corporate Governance Committee are (a) reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements of the
Company; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (c) reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct of Directors and relevant employees of the Group
on dealings with the Company’s securities; and (d) reviewing
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in this report. The Corporate Governance Committee held
one meeting during the Year.
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A summary of the work performed by the Corporate
Governance Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and made
recommendation to the Board;

ii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.

5. Executive Committee (set up on 25 November
2014)

The Executive Committee consists of two members, namely
Mr. Bryan Wong (Chairman of the Committee) and Ms.
Vanessa Fan, both being the Executive Directors. The
primary duties of the Executive Committee are (a) formulating
business policies and making decision on matters relating
to the management and operations of the Company; and (b)
having all power and authorities of the Board except those
matters specifically reserved for the full Board as set out in
the “Formal Schedule on matters reserved for and delegated
by the Board” adopted by the Board from time to time.

SECURITIES TRANSACTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted EEH Securities Code on terms no
less exacting than the required standards set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions of Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry to all Directors, all of them confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard of dealings in the
Model Code and EEH Securities Code throughout the Year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
management has provided such explanation and information
to the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment of
the financial and other information put before it for approval.
The Directors believe that they have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgment and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and
ensured the consolidated financial statements are prepared
on a “going concern” basis. The auditor of the Company has
made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal financial statements so as to give
the Directors a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility to ensure
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

LW E: 2
EZANERFAERRAKE ZRAVHR
KN ETRAMRE MU B HESER
MEEECEREFTSRHEBLENAGH
SR K B A E 1R 2 A B B RHED
AMIERHE - EFHE - WFCEEAEZE
AR YERERZERR  FHEER
BIEZ HE R fhE - RS S M BHRRIR
[FREE | ERRER - RARZZHBEEH
BEZREEENBLZBEMBRENIEL 2
B o

EEBESANEFEHAMNBIRGEN B
BREMEF AR - DAEFREARAZ
K3 - BISOR R AR AE RS RIZH
S -

J B A B e P G A

wELHE
EEGNEESECBENRRARFRY
RERFAERER BRERRAMELER
# o LRGBS EERMIEER R ERED
BiE2 A - WA EAE RIS IER
RS BT IFBH IR -

\\\\ ) / / /,/ /A~ \\ \\\\ ) // / // ~
NUAL REPORT 2015/2016\\ 2015/2016 44k -
ANNDAL REPGRT 20152016 2015/ 2015 %

- o
—_ N - )

A L > —\




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
oe SEelct: et

PRyl R ([ % F 7

Main features of the risk management and internal JHFG &

control systems (“Systems”) 712 LB
Control structure EERE 1
The Board e ensure the maintenance of appropriate EF& o MRAEFRSENENNZL

Audit Committee

The management
(includes heads
of business units,
departments and
divisions)

Internal Audit
Department

and effective Systems in order
to safeguard the Shareholders’
investment and assets of the Group

define management structure with
clear lines of responsibility and limit of
authority

determine the nature and extent of
significant risk that the Company is
willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives and formulating the Group’s
risk management strategies

oversee the Systems of the Group

review and discuss with the
management annually to ensure that
the management has performed its
duty to have the effective Systems

consider major findings on
internal control matters and make
recommendations to the Board

design, implement and monitor the
Systems properly and ensure the
Systems are executed effectively

monitor risks and take measures to
mitigate risks in day-to-day operations

give prompt responses to, and follow
up the findings on, internal control
matters raised by internal or external
auditors

provide confirmation to the Board on
the effectiveness of the Systems

carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Systems
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Control approach and tools

During the Year, the management analysed the control
environment, identified risks pertaining thereto, and implemented
various controls therein.

i. Approach taken: The management conducted interviews
with relevant staff members, reviewing relevant
documentation of the internal control system and evaluating
findings of any deficiencies in the design of the Group’s
internal control system, providing recommendations
for improvement and assessing the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations, where
appropriate. The scope and findings of review on the risk
management and internal control are reported to and
reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.

ii. Procedure manuals and operational guidelines: They are
in place to safeguard the assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper accounting
records in compliance with the applicable laws, rules and
regulations for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use and/or external publication.

ii. Management information system and technology: Such
use to control over the business activities allows close
tracking of various inputs and outputs of the Group’s
business such as human resources, products and customer
relationships. It also tracks audit trails in the authorisation
system, in which permissions and responsibility of
authorisation are clearly identified and adequate records can
be maintained in the system.

iv. Reports and variance analysis: Such reports and
analysis of each segment in the upstream, midstream and
downstream are conducted on a regular basis such that
the performance of each point of sales and each product
category can be easily accessible.

v. Information flow: The transparent information flow alerts
us promptly of any deviations. Benchmarking with historical
database and comparisons with the same also act as a
detecting device for spotting unusual activities.
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Risk management

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management measures and risk control and
review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyse,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated
with any activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority. It endeavours to evaluate and
compare the level of risk against predetermined acceptable
levels of risk. For risk control and monitoring, it involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable and how to
address those that are not. The management will develop
contingency plans for possible loss scenarios. Accidents and
other situations involving loss or near-loss will be investigated
and properly documented as part of the effort to manage risks.

Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through the process
of risk identification and assessment. Such significant risks of the
Group and their respective key strategies/control measures are
set out below:

Significant Risks
e Key Strategies/Control Measures

a) Changes and volatility in general economic conditions,
and stringent policies implemented by PRC Central
Government and Macau Government impacting
hospitality and travel related activities in Macau. Any
more adverse change in one of the above situations
would have significant impact to the Group's business.

e  Stay alert to changes in economic and market
conditions in the PRC or global economy and
adjust business strategic plans to cope with these
changes;

e Explore opportunities to expand business or market
and broaden the customer base;
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b)

e  While keeping high-quality hospitality services,
endeavour to control expenses and manpower or
reallocate resources in an efficient manner; and

e Attend more roadshows which are held by Macao
Government Tourism Office in Mainland China and
Asia in order to enhance the brand awareness of the
Group's hotels.

Increased competition in hotel and gaming industry

in Macau due to opening of more luxury hotels and
casinos, upgrade of existing hotels by competitors as
well as increasing in number of VIP rooms, gaming
tables and slot machines from existing casinos and
among other Asian countries (e.g. Malaysia, Singapore,
Vietnam and Cambodia). No assurance that the growth
of Macau’s tourism industry would increase in line

with or outpace the supply of hotel accommodation,
casino gaming tables and slot machines and this could
adversely affect the Group's business.

e Enlarge and expand the footprint of the Group in
sourcing hotel and gaming patrons;

e Devote to provide the best personalised service
to the guests in order to give them a memorable
experience; thereby differentiating GEH from other
hotels and enabling them to make GEH be their first
choice when they come back to Macau;

e Cooperate with travel agencies and airline
companies to develop long-haul visitor market;

e Launch promotions featuring GEH’s excellent
location to attract guests to extend length of
overnight stay, integrating with local tourism
resources, especially World Cultural Heritage
scenic spots; and

e |Improve marketing strategy and enhance
promotions and publicities from time to time in order
to encourage existing gaming patrons to come back
to GEH and attract new customers from around the
world.

o HEAREEEEREHRE -
BAEHIFE RAS - A
BT AEHEEER &

o ZHEBEZHRMBMIKERR
H B A b, % 0 M 3 [ R 0 ) B
R AT A S BB S ) G e
HBE -

HRBEFHFERMEMBER (N
FHORPEE ~ Frhns - MEg K oRim
H)FREZEFERBELES T+
AR TEE LA B8 D3R A BB IS H
VIPERE - BREATHEE - &
/iFEJZ/@E&T@r CERBFINE o B

RERERPIIREEXAIERASEE
Xtu@%&ﬁ REREENAT
HEHEE - ﬁ%ﬂ%$%§%¥
BEETNZE

o BAMMRASEWEEER
BEEPHEE

. ﬁﬁﬂﬁ@%hhr&mﬂA
TERTS - BRERH AT
B R 2R @E%ﬁ
B R R B - TS
FRBIHRFS R E2REH
JEEREE

. HRTTHE B ZE R R & VELARS
?E?ﬁ%*

o LIREBIREHEZEBUNUESR
SEGEITHE - 4 AR
EER  LEEMHFEEE
=3 R BERERBRERMNE
EIRS

o TG 2 BH RS I IN5R HE SR
REME - LEEREBYER
PN R 2 IREEAE K 5| R
BHHFEP o




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

b £ S TINYVAN
SR E RN
c) No assurance that the existing anti-money laundering

("AML") policies of the Group are in compliance with
applicable AML laws and that the policies in place could
sufficiently prevent or detect the occurrence of money
laundering activities at casinos.

e Review the existing compliance policies regularly;

e Comply with the reporting and compliance
procedures as request by Gaming Inspection
and Coordination Bureau or the AML compliance
department of SJM;

e  Stay alert to the industrial practices; and
e  Give regular training to the staff.

Reliance on SJM's Concession Contract which will
expire on 31 March 2020 and the existing services
agreement with SUM to run the Group's gaming
business. Termination of the SUM’s Concession Contract
or the services agreement with SUM for whatever
reasons or the renewal thereof is not granted to or made
by SUM or unfavourable change in the terms of the
services agreement would have impact on the gaming
business of the Group.

e  Stay alert to the policy and government practice and
the industrial practices and make changes to the
existing business plans or strategies, as and when
appropriate; and

e Keep close communications with SIM in this

respect.
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Internal controls

The Internal Audit Department is assigned with the task to
perform regular reviews on internal control system of the Group
in respect of operational, financial and compliance aspects
and will alert the management on the audit review findings
or irregularities, if any, advise them on the implementation of
necessary steps and actions to enhance the internal controls of
the Group. The result of internal audit reviews and agreed action
plans are reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

Other than review of the Systems, the Audit Committee has
also reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Board acknowledged that the management had been
progressively implementing an adequate internal control system
to ensure the effective functioning of the Group’s operational,
financial and compliance areas, including the following key
measures, policies and procedures:-

i. Safeguard of assets: Surprise physical count of cash, chips
and client deposits held in casino and coupons for casino
are performed by Internal Audit Department to safeguard the
assets;

ii. Service quality control: Regular review on operational
systems of hotel and gaming business segments to ensure
the service quality; and questionnaires are provided in
different outlets to welcome customers’ feedbacks for our
service improvement;

iii. Financial reporting management:
e Proper controls are in place for the recording of

complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information;

e Regular reports on revenue, marker receivables’ ageing
and debtors’ ageing and internal financial reports are
prepared to the management which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s financial
performance;
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Vi.

Vil.

e Monthly updates on internal financial statements
are provided to all Directors which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient
details; and

e Annual audit by external auditor is carried out to ensure
that the consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, the Group’s accounting policies and the
applicable laws and regulations.

the Systems and Procedures on Disclosure of Inside
Information to ensure, with the assistance of an internal
work team (if required), that any material information which
comes to the knowledge of any one or more officers should
be promptly identified, assessed and escalated, where
appropriate, for the attention of the Board;

the policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements which shall be reviewed and
monitored regularly by the Corporate Governance Committee
as delegated by the Board;

the establishment of a CCT Compliance Committee to
monitor, control and regularly review continuing connected
transactions of the Company and ensure proper compliance
with all relevant laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and
disclosure requirements; and

a whistle-blowing policy for employees of the Group to
raise concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. Such
arrangement will be reviewed by the Audit Committee which
ensures that proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation of the matters.

The Board and Audit Committee have reviewed the Group’s
Systems and are not aware of any significant issues that would
have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
Systems.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication
policy and review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
The Company communicates with the Shareholders mainly in
the following ways: (i) the holding of annual general meetings
and special general meetings, if any, which may be convened
for specific purposes which provide opportunities for the
Shareholders to communicate directly with the Board; (ii) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports
and/or circulars as required under the Listing Rules; (iii) the
availability of latest information of the Group in the Company’s
website at www.emp296.com; and (iv) the holding of press
conference from time to time.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. The Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit
the Company’s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on
the Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” of this annual report.

In order to protect the environment and save costs for the benefit
of Shareholders, the Company has introduced the electronic
means for receiving corporate communication by Shareholders.
The Shareholders may elect to receive printed or electronic
copies of corporate communication. However, Shareholders
are encouraged to access corporate communication from the
Company through the Company’s website.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
such substantial issues, including the re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for the 2015
AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and notices of all other general meetings were
sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before the
meetings.

The Chairperson of the 2015 AGM and the chairperson/members
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committee
and the external auditor were available at the 2015 AGM to
answer questions from the Shareholders, with the assistance
of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the meeting
had explained the procedures for conducting a poll during the
meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS” RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Code:

Convening a special general meeting (“SGM”) and
putting forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to submit a written
requisition requiring a SGM to be called by the Board. The written
requisition (i) must state the object(s) of the meeting, and (ii) must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the principle
office of the Company for attention of the Company Secretary of
the Company, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists. Such requisitions
will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and upon
its confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an SGM by
serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders. On the contrary, if the
requisition has been verified as not in order, the requisitionists will
be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the SGM will not be
convened as requested.

If Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for a day not more
than two months after the date of deposit of a proper requisition,
the requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them may convene a SGM, but
any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. A meeting
convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be
convened by directors.

it S HE
PR PRI
e

£ PH e 34 Bl K & (T e 8 Rl ok
1) RAEBRER G LI EHESE

ﬁﬁﬁﬁtmmiﬁﬂ%&$ AzER
ARR - FAE 2 55 B B AR AL AR
TK$ \ABEAR HEE Y DR RAT

T 2 BORE THER

PRtz — (10%)E’Jﬂx%H¢ﬁ%L“$E
AR BREZSARBRRENARE

= *-EE

Eﬁ/\( VESIRA RSB/ » R(NEREBA

FEWFEIARNBEERHER (GERARE A
%$ RlZARMWE) WA AEH RESE
NESHEER - MBHE—RRZTEEBA

HE - BEBXKBEHAALF 2RMDBFLERT
BZE  WEABKERRBEERFTAR
FF RRIMEBEKETER2EBREHEL
BB UBHARREIAE Rz &
ERBEREREATHARRF  IZBAL
ERNERER MBEREIAREBETeRE
ZERAH o

HMEEEBZEZFRSEZ AHET21H
N REEEZ2FBHKBEHERMEARNZ
REBBRBRERNIAE  BZFE2FAN
HERERARKREE—FULZ2F
AETAMBRERARE - EEANL A
ZHEREFNRENSE LG REEZ A
EE3EAEMERET HEFAARIAKN
SABARENRIEFTARAGZHERT A
AR °




Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of the registered Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”),
or not less than 100 of such registered Shareholders, can request
the Company in writing to (a) give to Shareholders entitled to
receive notice of the next general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice
of any general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting. The
requisition signed by all the Requisitionists must be deposited
at the principal office of the Company with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and not
less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that if an
AGM is called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition has
been deposited, the requisition though not deposited within the
time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited
for the purposes thereof.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company whose contact details are shown on “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” of this Annual Report.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditor,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tomatsu is independent and has
recommended the Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s
auditor at the 2016 AGM. During the Year, Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, has rendered audit services and certain
non-audit services to the Company and the remuneration paid/
payable to it by the Company is set out as follows:

e 428 3% e 5

Service rendered
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FEZBIRT

Audit services

Non-audit services
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
A%

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT
HOTEL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 65 to 146, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

BHEEREEERRATAZRR
(REREZZMELZERAA)

AAZEAME BN FESEETF 146 B R E
REHEFRAR([EARE ) RENEA A
(A [BEE]) 2EAMERE - RS
BB SRERBIEN2016FE3 /31 B 258K
MAKREBREZBALFEZRABEREM
FEHUREEX  GKEEREDREGEERESR
BEX  UKFESHBRMEREMBBEES
B} o

LA BB IR
HAE

BERAMEZRERBETESMAERMHZ
RV HREERNREL R RO Z RER
ERBEERRNVF2HEaMBHRE  YHE
SETERRYE S RERRA (Em R
ARSI ) 2R A M BB RRM B L
BZRBARNEZEESR -

BBz AL

AT BEERBRBATZIERHZEFEEM
BHRREXER  UREBRERQFEEN
RERZBBIRME - BRULASN - A& Rl
BHMEH - AT TERARENARTRE
MEMALTEBEHAETFREE -  ATER
BEEBESF M ASEMNBEETERNET
Bz REEABRATETERAS - I
REINATTEZ - A BBESE M BRE
A NFEEAHRRAL -

2015/2016 4E#t




O
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A%

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2016, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

fo oy AR g e LAl 2 v W 5 5%
For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
{iF Tt T 0
Revenue WA 7 2,034,787
Cost of sales 35 & A A (44,479)
Cost of hotel and gaming operations B /& & IBF ZE15 2 kA (548,550)
Gross profit EF 1,441,758
Other income E A 88,283
Fair value changes of investment REMENTEES
properties 11,800
Other losses HibE18E 9 (22,870)
Selling and marketing expenses HEMTSHERER (485,724)
Administrative expenses T ER (255,511)
Finance costs MIEER 10 (19,179)
Profit before taxation Bk A5 Al Al 11 758,557
Taxation FIA 13 (63,764)
Profit and total comprehensive FERMNEEEBEREE
income for the year 694,793
Profit and total comprehensive B FE &N REE N =EE
income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARHER A 504,277
Non-controlling interests VR RE 190,516
694,793
Earnings per share BRRAET 15
Basic (HK$) ER(GBT) 0.39
ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016  2015/2016 4E-3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ao B A5 AIR O AR

At 31 March 2016 2201643 H31H

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
{5 Tl AR
Non-current assets EMEN A E
Investment properties B 16 732,000
Property, plant and equipment W - W KRR 17 1,465,881
Prepaid lease payments FENEERIE 18 554,981
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEME  HERERBEZ
property, plant and equipment BEfTE]l& 3,564
Goodwill EES 19 110,960
2,867,386
Current assets mMENE B
Inventories, at cost BFE B 14,002
Trade and other receivables B 5 N Hoh FE K 20 381,071
Prepaid lease payments FEMNEERE 18 16,580
Pledged bank deposits EIRIRRITIE X 21 2,420,870
Short-term bank deposits 52 EAERTTIF 5K 21 =
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 21 674,036
3,506,559
Current liabilities mBaE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A FERFR 22 211,587
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries R [F X HE A 7IFE 23 5,283
Amounts due to non-controlling R—REIKT B A R 2 FEHER%
interests of a subsidiary IR FIB 24 150,000
Taxation payable FEIHLIR 431,189
Bank borrowings — due within RITEE—FRINH
one year 25 38,271
836,330
Net current assets mEEEFE 2,670,229
Total assets less current liabilities BEERMEAE 5,537,615
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bank borrowings — due after RITIEE——F1&T|H
one year 25 507,600
Deferred taxation RIER IR 27 115,684
623,284
4,914,331
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ao B BB AR DL AR

At 31 March 2016 2201643 H31H

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

Tt T T

B RS
Share capital &z 28
Reserves et

Capital and reserves

130
3,301,311

Equity attributable to owners of the ~ ARAFIEE AFE(GHER

Eompany 3,301,441

1,612,890

Non-controlling interests FEIERR AR 2E 31

4,914,331

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 146 were F65BEF 146 B MHE VG MBHREER
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 201646 822 B & & =& #h f & 55 HE %% -

22 June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTIEEREKEE
WONG CHI FAI FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA
FEE SEEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EZE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Ao st B
For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

At1 April 2014

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

2014 final dividend paid in cash

2015 interim dividend paid in cash

R014ELR1R
LTl

NUERSRS HRLRH
N15ERERS - WBETH

At 31 March 2015

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

2015 final dividend paid in cash

2016 interim dividend paid in cash

R015E3A31R
FRENR2ENESE

WIERSRE BTN
N16ERHRE  HBLRH

At31 March 2016

1016E3A31E

Share
capital
Itk
HKS'000
T

130

Attributable to owners of the Company

Capital

redemption

Share Teserve
premium ]
kiR il
HKS/000 HKS'000
ik Tién

436,765 668

RATHE A
Property

revaluation Legal  Accumulated
Teserve Teserve profits
UL i Rit
Wi Wl Al
HK§000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tk T i

(note 30)

(Fi30)
8478 81 2513604
= = 504217
- = (97,691)
= = (65,127

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED % B B 4% 0 ik A7 R A )

Total
fit
HKS'000
T

2,959,962

504,277
(07,491)
(65,127)

Non-
controlling
interests
Hik
L}
HKS/000
T

1422374

190,516

Total
equity
b 1
HKS'000
Tin

4,362,356

694,793
(07,91)
(65,127)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

a Bl e ER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Interest income
Interest expenses

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Release of prepaid lease payments

Allowance (reversal of allowance)
for doubtful debts, net

Fair value changes of investment
properties

Impairment loss on prepaid lease
payments

Loss from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

RAQEEH 2 HERE
BB AT

A%

FLBHA

IR

ME - BERREZITE

R TR EERIEA
REEBHE(RE) - FE

BREMERFEED

BNHEERBERER R

HEMRE « BB RREBZEBRER

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease (increase) in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade and other
receivables

(Decrease) increase in trade and other
payables

(Decrease) increase in amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries

Rt BEABBA 2 KERERE

FEZRD(Em)

B 5 REMEYEZE A ()

B 5 REMEMNRZORD)IE M

UNCES I UNCIE /WA 6 2R pill

Cash generated from operations REKEXBE2RE

Income tax paid BEATEH

Net cash from operating activities REKEEE 2 IREFE

Cash flows from investing activities REREEES 2 HESRE
Placement of short-term bank deposits FAEHRITER

Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

Placement of pledged bank deposits

Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Interest received
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

BEWE M MRE

F AR BMRRITIFRK

BEWX BELRBZEMN2
R BEMRITER

EXFE

REEHRITER

HEME - EBERRE 2P

=71

5318

Net cash from (used in) investing activities

KB (RAMRERBZREFR
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2016 2015
HK$000
Tt

HK$'000
T

758,557

(77,073)
17,259

145,693
16,580

(2,612)

(11,800)

2,986

849,590
(441)

(6,392)
22,765

568

866,090
(3,601)

862,489

(505)

(102,745)
(1,236,394)

(3,564)
1,229,920

73,081

15:571

357
(24,279)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AHERER

»‘/3‘

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid
Repayment of bank and other borrowings

Repayments to non-controlling interests
of a subsidiary

Interest paid
Repayment of bank overdraft

Bank borrowings raised

KEREZDHZRERE
B E
fEIER

&
fEE —
FEIE
ENFE

BERITEX
EERITER

REAMEE

7
B AR
A FE Zm EA TR

2015
HK$’000

T 7T

(162,818)
(499,000)

(36,000)
(14,669)
(402,016)
540,000

Net cash used in financing activities

AR EES R &8

(574,503)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the reporting period

RekASFBY 2B INFE
ERPN 2R RASEEY

263,707

410,329

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
reporting period, representing bank
balances and cash

Dﬁ%iZﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%'

RITEBRMERESZ2HR

LA

674,036
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R W R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the “Corporate Information and Key Dates” section
of the annual report. The Company’s immediate holding
company is Emperor Entertainment Hotel Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. The
intermediate holding company of the Company is Emperor
International Holdings Limited (“Emperor International”), a
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, the
shares of which are also listed on the Stock Exchange. The
ultimate holding company of the Company is Albert Yeung
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability which is in turn held by STC
International Limited, being the trustee of The Albert Yeung
Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”), the settlor and founder of
which is Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 36.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee

contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2010-2012 cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2011-2013 cycle
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 13 S 055 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. AP R RETHE M
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL B e ([ 75 9 B 85 it
REPORTING STANDARDS HUER ) (42 )

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in RAFERERA Ell BB B HREXER 2
the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s BT REBRANEE MBEFET
financial performance and positions for the current and prior RIE KRR KB AR A B ISR R AT E R
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated BMEEATE -

financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and AL B R T R A A T BB E R
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet EMZFIEREIEFT TR B REE
effective: A -
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?2 BRI REED SRIA?
F95%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with ERHBEEES BPAHIMA2
customers? F15%;
HKFRS 16 Leases* AR BREER g
F16%%
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of BRI BREER WA R ERER T RE
interests in joint operations! FNRZET
Amendments to HKFRS 15  Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue BB RS R BAMBREEAEISREP
from contracts with customers? LA H) BHWAZER?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative! BRSEREIR  REE
ZIEF]
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable BEGHENEIR R HEREH RS AN
and HKAS 38 methods of depreciation and EEEesTED|E38 BB
amortisation' BT
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants’ BASHEREIRR X £EMEYD
and HKAS 41 BAGHERE41
2B
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity method in separate BREHEAE R BUNBRER L ERE
financial statements! B3]
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets EAMBHEEN  REERABELFAILEA
and HKAS 28 between an investor and its FIORREREE AAEERNLERTA®
associate or joint venture? BB 085k 2 53]
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: Applying the ERBERE &S| KREBEE : EREAEAMN
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 consolidation exception' F10%; - FAMH VA
REEAB12HER
R ERIF28
R BET
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs ERIBREER 2 2012@52014@3@%@%\7’%5&7}
2012-2014 cycle' B3] BREEN  EESE
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. 1 R2016F1 A1 B AEFIE 2 FEHRH
AR o
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 2 R20184 1 A1 H ok LAT& 46 2 F [ Hi
R o
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 8 RiGEE 2 B ik A& RtE 2 FEHAR A
determined. B o
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 4 R2019% 1 A1 8 sk bA1& F 18 2 F fZ 85 S
AR o

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED 3t B2 4 843 JE 45 B /A 7]




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 3 SV 055 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include
a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement category
for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Fr 8 055 o8 e J SR o 9% [ &
IAR]

F2009%F Mffi 2 & BB 15 £ RIS 9
FEASRAESBRABIHME -
HIRI2010F 53] 2 B M B & 48
FOFRELRMBBEDI BRI BURL
LR Z IR - WH2013FMAB R —
R B SR IR TR 2 TR 12014
FRM 2 BB B RE LR EH S —
{EEISFTHRAE E 0 Aa)S B & E 2
ERERD)RETHEBBITASIA
EBEMEEKE A TE]([BBR
2R AFEDHBER - HH
BRGHEBAEIEEARE -

EREMBREENFIR T EREH
Ui (A N

s BEASEAFIRIE&HMT
H ®mRNMAE IBERNZAEARE
R EER R BREHKA
ZRFEAE - AEME BHOR
WEBAEKHNREREZEBEATH
BRI A REERERHAREE
A2 MENRZANATREZ
BHRE  —RRERZEHHIE
RREIZEHERAGE - BRI
BRENRERERHESREEL
EBEATHAAREREEALN
GFEREHRBERRMELEZRERE
MERINEAERAREERE ZH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 13 S 055 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKEFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The directors of the Company considered the expected
credit loss model may result in earlier recognition of
impairment on financial assets. The directors of the
Company will assess the impact of the application of HKFRS
9. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

oF AP 0 B K8 A% AT A i B
B e o e 0 (T 75 8 W 0
W) (4

Ay o 55 e o Y B SR 9 B [ <

THIGE)

e HMERMEEREMS B BEBGE
ERFEIFETREELEERRE
BAFFERAR - BEMBHREER
FORRERAHEEHBEAG
B -AHNEERERAATEEN

EREHHASEREERERE

FRARSRHAEEERE  URIRE
ER B RERIARZ ZE - i
B2 BABRSBRLEEEEMHE
RIEEEE -

ARBEER F%fﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁéﬂaﬁﬁ—f
ERRFEATHEERE - AR
$Hﬁn¥1ﬁfﬁﬁiﬁﬁéﬁﬁ7}%$ﬁiﬁﬁu%9ﬂ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R W R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a
single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 supersedes the revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and
the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that the Group should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard has a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2:ldentify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5:Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15. The directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may have an impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has
been completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 13 S 055 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKEFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases”, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the
lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest portion
and presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the
right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially measured
on a present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments
to be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or not to
exercise an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee accounting
for leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17, which does not require
the recognition of such right-of-use asset or lease liability
but which requires certain information about operating lease
commitments to be made as disclosed in note 33.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R W R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BB H

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKEFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

The directors of the Company are in the process of assessing
the impact of HKFRS 16 on the consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has
been completed.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the “CO”).

A i 1 B e e SR e 5% [ AL
B1#)
MEAAGAME - BEMBRE L
BIE 165 ABMA T BEG LS
17N BAAGIDRRE - Bt - 1A
ANEEHERENEREEAEAME
AE - YHMBAEETTREZ F5HE
2 o

RAABEEEEFHESYERE LA
F1HRUGAUBHRERZTE - AW -
ReFAEMEA R EEREZTYENS
BIAE -

AR BV EEFAHIE R H MR RAEERT
FEVBREERNEANEE 2 5786 /75
BRETEBEATE -

R

REMBRRDVBETEGFTMASR
2 BEHHHRELEAMARER o tLIh -
REMBRRTEBERIAES MR
AT EwHRR D) RBBRARGH([AR
RGP E 2 BRI -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016  2015/2016 “F-$i




7"

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the provisions of the new CO (Cap. 622)
regarding preparation of accounts and directors’ reports
and audits and to streamline with HKFRSs, which became
effective for the Company for the financial year ended 31
March 2016. Accordingly, the presentation and disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial statements for
the financial year ended 31 March 2016 have been changed
to comply with these new requirements. Comparative
information in respect of the financial year ended 31 March
2015 is presented or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements based on the new requirements. Information
previously required to be disclosed under the predecessor
CO or Listing Rules but not under the new CO or amended
Listing Rules is not disclosed in these consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
which are measured at fair values as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED

3. EEEFBUR (4)

EHRBTHBERETERBE CEERT
E2EF ARG (F6228 ) EEHREE
RERESHEREZR GBI
HENEBEUEHRELENBE - B
ERNARTEE2016FE3 831 B IFB
FEEM - Bt - HE2016F3A31H
I BEELEEUNEREIRNZERZT
MFEETFTERABETHETRTE - B
A E2015F3A31 B LI EE 2 L
BREAREBREBEFIRERGEVBHRERA
25 HFE - BIERIABEHIK LR
BIEAE A TR EEREFT D a5
LUSE] EMARBBAREEZER - R
RAEMBHRERPEBERE -

HEMBERRIVIZELRAELERE
HRBEY X AL N HERFE - AT X
F]I 2SR BRI - ERRA—&R
AR KRG 4 TREZ AFE
REEFFH -

e YA PR A W]



W
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 431 H -4

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEGFIBUR ()

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e |level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e |evel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between

members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R W R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEGFIBUR ()

POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating lease to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are accounted
for as investment properties and measured using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their useful lives, using the straight line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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W
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R W R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEGFIBUR ()

POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset or a cash-generating unit is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or the cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or the cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or a cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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W
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R W R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEGFIBUR ()

POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories represent food and beverage, consumable and
other goods of hotel and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated using
the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets represent loans and
receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Loans and
receivables are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the loans and
receivables, the estimated future cash flows of the loans and
receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e |t becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis even if they were assessed not to be
impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on the
receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R W R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. BEGEIBUR (4)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
financial asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, amounts due to non-
controlling interests of a subsidiary and bank borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R W R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. BEGEIBUR (4)

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts received for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e itis probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue arising from services provided to a gaming operator
in Macau under service arrangements for gaming operation
in mass market hall, VIP room and slot machine hall is
recognised when the provision of gaming-related marketing
and public relation services are rendered and the Group
is entitled to receive its service income according to the
relevant operating performance from the gaming operator.

Revenue from hotel accommodation are recognised upon
the provision of the accommodation services. Revenue from
food and beverage sales and other ancillary services are
recognised upon the provision of goods and services.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Service income is recognised when the services are
provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 431 H -4

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. BFEGFEOR ()

POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax for such investment properties are measured
in accordance with the above general principles set out in
HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the
properties will be recovered).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operation are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of the translation reserve and will be reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign
operation.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgment applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgment applying accounting policies
(continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties situated in Macau with carrying
amount of HK$664,200,000 as at 31 March 2016 (2015:
HK$732,000,000) are held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, the directors of the
Company have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of such investment properties are
recovered through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group
has recognised deferred tax liabilities of HK$80,664,000
(2015: HK$89,908,000) on changes in fair value of
investment properties subject to Macau Complementary
Income Tax, on the assumption that these investment
properties will be recovered through use as at 31 March
2016.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, which may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties of HK$664,200,000 as
at 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$732,000,000) was based on a
valuation on these properties conducted by an independent
firm of professional valuers using property valuation
techniques which involve certain assumptions of market
conditions, including comparable market transactions with
adjustments to reflect different locations or conditions and
comparable market rents and transactions and discount
rates. Changes to the assumptions would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based on
an assessment of the recoverability of debtors. Allowances
are made on trade receivables whenever there is any
objective evidence that the balances may not be collectible.
In determining whether an allowance for doubtful debts is
required, the Group takes into consideration the ageing
status and the likelihood of collection. Following the
identification of doubtful debts, the credit team discusses
with the relevant customers and assess the recoverability.
Specific allowance is only made for trade receivables that
are unlikely to be collected. Where the expectation on the
recoverability of the debts is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and allowance for doubtful debts in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

The carrying amount of trade receivables as at 31 March
2016 is HK$121,842,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$32,399,000) (2015: HK$191,612,000 (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of HK$42,186,000)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimates of repayment of amounts due to non-
controlling interests of a subsidiary

The Group’s carrying amount of the interest-free amounts
due to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary as at 31
March 2016 was HK$132,000,000 (2015: HK$150,000,000).
According to the shareholders’ agreements, these amounts
are repayable only when the indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Luck United Holdings Limited (“Luck United”),
and its subsidiaries have surplus fund. Surplus fund
represents available cash within these subsidiaries after
paying all operating expenses and payables, including
but not limited to bank loans and third party loans which
are due for repayment together with the accrued interest.
The carrying amount of the amounts due to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary and the deemed contribution by
the non-controlling interests may be adjusted to reflect the
revised estimated cash flows when the Group revises its
estimates of the timing and amount of repayment to the
non-controlling interests based on the cash flow forecasts
and availability of surplus fund of Luck United and its
subsidiaries, and consequently affect the amount of imputed
interest to be recognised in profit or loss, if any, over the
expected life of the amounts due to non-controlling interests
of a subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT 4. = % 6 51 5 B 5 % 51 & o

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The board
of directors of the Company has a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages qualified external valuers to perform
the valuation of the Group’s investment properties. At the
end of each reporting period, the designated team works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group
will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can
be derived observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt
valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there
is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes
of the fluctuations will be reported to the board of directors
of the Company. Information about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties are disclosed in note 16.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the amounts due to non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary and bank borrowings as disclosed in notes 24 and
25 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, accumulated profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the debt
raising.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. &l LH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) &k T H2Z M5

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

T#x Tt

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables B R SR
Trade and other receivables B 5 I E h fE R 367,245
Pledged bank deposits EHERRITIFHK 2,420,870
Short-term bank deposits RHEBSRITIE K =
Bank balances and cash RITEB NS 674,036
3,462,151
Financial liabilities SRIEE
At amortised cost REESHR AR
Trade and other payables B 5 & H Ath fERT 5K 116,275
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries USEES NGRS 5,283
Amounts due to non-controlling interests R—ERBRARZ
of a subsidiary FEIERR R FRIA 150,000
Bank borrowings RITEE 545,871

817,429
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed in
above table. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in
foreign currency exchange rate will affect the Group’s
financial results and its cash flows. Several subsidiaries
of the Company have foreign currency sales and
purchase, but the management considers the amount
of foreign currency sales and purchase is insignificant.
The management considers the Group does not
expose to significant foreign currency risk in relation to
transactions denominated in Macau Pataca (“MOP”).
Exposures on balances which are denominated in MOP
in group entities with HK$ as functional currency are not
considered significant as MOP is pegged to HK$.

The Group has certain pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and bank balances which are
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) (being currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities) amounting to HK$679,183,000 (2015:
HK$2,506,197,000). In addition, certain financial assets
of the Group are denominated in RMB amounting to
HK$12,286,000 (2015: HK$37,551,000). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. 4mhTH ()
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) 4 %5 b B B R B KB

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 5.0% (2015: 1.0%) in
exchange rate of RMB against HK$, while all other
variables are held constant. 5.0% (2015: 1.0%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to the key management personnel and
represents the management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for
a 5.0% (2015: 1.0%) change in foreign currency rate.
For a 5.0% (2015: 1.0%) strengthening in RMB against
HK$, the Group’s profit for the year would be increased
by HK$34,573,000 (2015: HK$25,437,000). If RMB had
been weakened against HK$ in an opposite magnitude
and all other variables were held constant, the potential
effect on the results would be equal and opposite.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent
foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and bank deposits included in
bank balances. The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to its variable-rate bank
balances and bank borrowings. The Group currently
does not have policy on cash flow hedges of interest rate
risk. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arises.

(#)

17 55 I i (75 )

S B (4E)
TXARNEEFG AR KB TES
H285.0% (20154 : 1.0% ) &) A BE
RIEEHN  MEMEEHEFTE
ZHRAE R ° 5.0% (20154 :
1.0%)IAEEERAB RN R
INERBRERAZRRE X
WHREREBEEHINEIERAIRES 1B
BE TG MBRELISMERE
N EZ MASZNERIER -
I HA 2 R HA R B LA S BE o
5.0% (20155 1.0% ) {EFE X A -
mHE AR R B ITLHE5.0%(2015
F:1.0%) ' NEBAFEE R R F
#1512 1134,573,000% 7T (20154 :
25,437,000 L) - H AR L H
TRERZEERMEEMESR
BrE  SEFEEEKRAZTRAR

ZEEYE -

ARBIEFERE  HRFRERS
RERBRAFENER - BWBERED
36 NBER R B SN [E Rl

R 3 B

AR EEREEN XS ERRTF
K BHIRITERMBITER(G
ARRITHEBRA) B2 R FER
K@ o A5 B IR ERF B F KR
TREBREBRITIEERBZEEZRE
MERER - AEEREILER SR
BE P ERRER K - AT - B
BEEERMNEIARENFEERE
BEIHME RN XER
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

6. ik TH (#4)
(b) % 5 ) b 4 P % B K BUSR

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk
has been determined based on the exposure to interest
rate for those variable-rate bank balances and bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting period and
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in the interest rate assuming that it took place
at the beginning of each year and was held constant
throughout the respective year.

If interest rate for the variable-rate bank balances had
been 10 basis points (2015: 10 basis points) higher and
interest rate for the variable-rate bank borrowings had
been 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis points) higher
and all other variables were held constant, the potential
effect on profit for the year is as follows:

Increase (decrease) in profit for the year

— Variable-rate bank balances

— Variable-rate bank borrowings

FREMEMN ORd)
—FEM R IRITHE
—FEMERIRITHE

(#)

17 53 I B (7#)

R B ()

56 B SR % 7 8 I LR 2 U
T 1R 1% 2 MR R 2 SR B I 4R1T
M RRTIEE 2 FIEERRER
BARFEARATLED 2 (5 M
R BR A B B ) B
s BREFEERRETE -

W 2B RPITEHZFE EFA10
EE2E (20155 - 10{EEZ) &F T
FIRBITEE ZFIE EAL0EEZ
(20154 : SOMEEEL) - EfFrEE
SRREBETE  FERANZBEY
2T

2016 2015
HK$’000

HK$'000
F#t T

If interest rates had been lower in an opposite magnitude
and all other variables were held constant, the potential
effect on the results would be equal and opposite.

1) A D 2 o 7
BRI TS WEEBERAZR
ARz EERE -

e EL LT AT BR 2 ]
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. 4mhTH ()
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) 4 %5 b B B R B KB

policies (continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 March 2016 in relation to each class
of recognised financial asset is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In order to manage the credit risk,
the management has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at the end of the reporting period based
on the management’s knowledge of customers and
their creditability and repayment record to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 63.1%
(2015: 81.2%) and 87.8% (2015: 92.9%) of the total trade
receivables which were due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively
within the business segment of gaming operation. The
directors of the Company consider that there is no
significant credit risk on the trade receivables from
the five largest customers given their strong financial
background and good creditability. The remaining trade
receivables balances are spread over a number of
customers.

(#)

1 Bl B
MN20165E3H31H » B EDHER
ZERMEEMS ARBEERS
HFRERBTESEAKIEHEZ
BEAEERR ARG VKR KA
Mz EBEMNERAEE - AEEEER
% TEEEZR—EABEKEEE
EEERS - EEEH R EMER
2R - UBEREEREZETE R E 5
HIER o AN RERHAR A%
EREEEBHEFREZEENK
FREFRACER R AT S @R
ZoREKRZAT M E S EE - AR
{RBL7S AT Y [B] R IB 1B H 2 50 5m (B 7
HeREME  ARFEERAEARN
EEZEERBRE KBRIE -

HREFREGRREEFARE
g E S ERFRZRT - FLtR
BESZEERRAR °

AEBZBESRRFBRBFEEF
SERE - TIRBEERBRLE?
BOBZEAZEFEAAREFESD
Bl A63.1% (20154 : 81.2% ) &
87.8% (20154 : 92.9% ) &N
ABEERABREBNAREFZES
MGz EERBRIETEAXN @ JHIE
BEZHBRRABRREELER
iF - B8 5 R UGRE KBS B
BETEFE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

6. &M LH ()
(b) B4 % JB b 45 B 5% B e BSR

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of banking facilities and ensures
compliance with loan covenants, if any.

As at 31 March 2016, based on the existing levels
of bank balances and the existing banking facilities
available, the Group will be able to meet its future
cash flow requirements. Accordingly, the management
considers that the Group’s liquidity risk is minimal.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of HK$723,024,000 (2015:
HK$2,436,982,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities that will
result in cash outflow. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes principal
cash flows.

(#45)

B & 2 B
REBREREMRE  KNEEE
ERAEFRSRREEBYENE
BERAETEZKF » B ASE
ErReMBEe LREBESRE
R HE ERBERRITEE
ZHEABARBRFTAEERLS
(AF) -

MN2016E3 A31H © BIFRITAH
WAEKERBBOHERNRITE
BERHE  AEBEFemmeERAR
HemeFmk Al EEERE
REEMNRBESRREM

M2016F3A31H » K&EEZ A]
HERBEAHHARITEEEE
£ 723,024,000 7 T ( 2015 £ :
2,436,982,000/8 7T ) °

TERFIBEFAEER SR 2
TREBBEIHRTHEINRAFS -
WRIRIBEAEE R EAER &
FREHzeMBEIRMERDR
EMRH - ZRBEREASREZA

A
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables

Weighted ~ Less than
average  Tmonthor
effective  repayable
inferestrate ~ on demand

WEFy - SRR
RRAE REERIR
HKS'000

Tién

2016 016F

Trade and other payables BAREME
Amounts dug to felow subsidlaries RRZKEAT;
Amounts due fo non-contoling interests — R—ENBAF 2R ELT B

i‘%

i}

3‘%

6. & TH(#E)
(b) M 2% R b 5 P 53 8 KBUSR

(#)
i B & <2 LB ()
B & Je | 3 g 76

Total
undiscounted Total

3 months 1.5 Over cashflows  carrying

to 1 year years 5 years AHH amount

WAEE  1EsE sENE RENEAW  MEEE

HKSOM  HKSO  HKSOm  HKSOO  HKSO
57N TG 7 T T

- = - 116,275 16,275
4 Z - 5283 5283

= = - 150000 150,000
H0% 200498 33201 612,531 540,000
= = = 5871 5871

of a subsidiary
Variable-rate bark loan ELER G
2015 0155
Trade and other payables BARAMENR - 11625
Amounts dug to fellow subsiciaries RRAMBARE - 5,283
Amounts due fo non-conroling interests  R—ENBATZFERERE

of a subsidiary - 10,000
Variable-rate bank loan RBNERAER 2% 1M
VariableTate bank overdrat EHES G 154% 5871

289,170

H% 20049 33201 869960 817429

(¢) Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of all financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost at the end of each reporting
period approximate their corresponding fair values.

(c) »FMH

cMEENERAEBZAFENE
NBHIRIB & RENMAREEZ AR
EEEAMERE °

ARBEERE  MEZHHR -
REBHEKAANRZFESREER
TREBECEAEREARATE
HE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

7. REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

7. WA
REEZ AP :

2016 2015
HK$’000

HK$'000
Tl Fibit

Service income from gaming operation in mass ~ HUISTEEEK 2

market hall BRFS U A 1,194,107
Service income from gaming operation in EEEBYER L

VIP room RIS UA 504,672
Service income from gaming operation in slot AFHMEEYER L

machine hall RIS UA 32,291
Hotel room income EIERRE WA 128,795
Food and beverage sales BRHE 129,723
Rental income from investment properties wEMFE 2 ASWA 29,947
Others HAth 15,252

2,034,787

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. A% E

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) have been identified as the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM”). The Executive Directors review
the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources.

For gaming operation, the Executive Directors regularly
analyse gaming revenue in terms of service income
from mass market hall, VIP room and slot machine hall.
No operating results or discrete financial information is
presented to the Executive Directors in relation to the above
analysis. The Executive Directors review the revenues and
operating results of gaming operation as a whole. They have
identified the operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 as gaming operation and hotel operation.

ARAHTES([MTES)CHH
IIRETERERRA(EERERE
AD - BRTESEHAKE 2 AED R
T UNEFERBALDEER

BEEBHE  ATEFSEHOME
BHi%  EEELATFHRENRBEA
SREZBEWA - Mt Bl o 2 K&
ESENTHEERLBEERTHITE
= HWTEEDNERBEABEEBZHK
AREEEE - RERBEREVHRE
EHESRH| AL 2 KA 2/ AL
FEBRBIER
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ¥ & Pl (4)

The segment information reported externally is analysed
on the basis of their types of services supplied by the
Group’s operating divisions which is consistent with the
internal information that is regularly reviewed by the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance. This is also the basis of organisation in the
Group, whereby the management has chosen to organise the
Group around different services provided by the Group. The
principal activities of the operating and reportable segments
are as follows:

Gaming operation - Mass market hall, VIP room and
slot machine hall operations
and provision of gaming-related
marketing and public relation
services in the casino of the Grand
Emperor Hotel in Macau

Hotel operation — Hotel operation in the Grand Emperor
Hotel and the Inn Hotel Macau
(formerly known as Best Western
Hotel Taipa) including property
investment income from investment
properties in these hotels in Macau

The Executive Directors assess the performance of individual
operating and reportable segments based on a measure
of adjusted earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation, exchange loss at corporate level, central
administration costs, fair value changes of investment
properties and impairment loss on prepaid lease payments
(the “Adjusted EBITDA”).

Inter-segment revenue is charged at a price mutually agreed
by both parties.

FINER 2 2 D RRE R IR AN B ZE
MOFRERB BRI SELETH
i - BMEREERRABEEMN - BIE
DEERMFERROAILE R 2 EHE
M= WTRARBCEBEE &
BERAE B AR ERE M 2 TR RS
HEBASE - FEAKERAIZHRO R
EZEEHWT

BREE — NRFREREAERS
25 BEBRRAT
HeEE 2 XI5 IA KRR (18
FHEZMISERERA
B AR 75

BEER — NRFIRZREAE M
PR B 5 (AT A
WP BB S ) 2B S
EB(RREREEELZ
BREMEZMFEIREW
A)

WITEFZRAE BB FERE
- CEREmBANELER  PRI1T
HER REMERFEZSALTAN
MEFA 2 BEBEA 2 &EHERR
([AEFHEEBITDA |) 2R ¥ E Bl & = I
AEHmO\2RA -

DEEBMAIZE T e 2 BRI -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. &R (45

Information regarding the above segments is reported below: B LMD BENERZ2®mAOT -
Segment revenues and results vk L NE S
For the year ended 31 March 2016 # £20164E3H 31 H I )&

Gaming Hotel

operation operation Total Elimination Consolidated

X231 VE S At HeH e
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TH#T TH#T TH#T T#T T

SEGMENT REVENUE PEEA

External revenue HIMIA

Inter-segment revenue AERBA

Total wst

Segment result based on the ERNMERREBITDAZ
Adjusted EBITDA SEELE

Bank interest income |ITHBUA

Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% - #RRHREZITE
equipment

Exchange loss at corporate level (¥ EmAELEE
Release of prepaid lease payments BB BN ERE

Fair value changes of investment R EW%¥ A AL

properties

Impairment loss on prepaid lease BN ERBZ FESE
payments

Finance costs &R

Unallocated corporate expenses ~ ADEMELH

Profit before taxation PR AT & 7
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

8. mBMER(4)
vig L ONE 3 4G )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

# £20154E3H 31 H IE 4

Gaming Hotel
operation operation Total  Elimination Consolidated
R ER VeSS 5t Eaf ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SR T T T T
SEGMENT REVENUE 2ERA
External revenue NI 1,731,070 303,717 2,034,787 = 2,034,787
Inter-segment revenue AEERKA - 2,821 2,821 (2,821) -
Total @t 1,731,070 306,538 2,037,608 (2,821) 2,034,787
Segment result based on the AN EREEBITDAZ
Adjusted EBITDA DEEEE 788,071 172,607 960,678 960,678
Bank interest income BRITHEKA 77,073
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% - KERREZTE
equipment (145,693)
Exchange loss at corporate level % EEAE &R (22,870)
Release of prepaid lease payments R EMTR EFE (16,580)
Fair value changes of investment R EW ¥ A FEE
properties 11,800
Finance costs &R (19,179)
Unallocated corporate expenses  APRAEZH (86,672)
Profit before taxation BB AR A 758,557

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating
and reportable segments is disclosed as it is not regularly

provided to the Executive Directors for review.

Other than the segment information disclosed in above, there
was no other information reviewed by the CODM for the years

ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

HRAREYEERREILERATZ2HR
DREERBENNMTHATESEHN -

WA ERFE RO

BR L3R BE 2 D AR - BE20165
3A31HKX2015F3A31HILFER -

MELMERHEBLERRAEH -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 4¥& Pl (4)

Geographical information b [ R}
The Group’s revenue was derived principally in Macau. REBEWAEZTEEBNEL -
The non-current assets are all located in Macau. EMBEEE IR o
Information about major customer AREREPZEN
During the year, revenue derived from one (2015: one) RAFE  EXAEEKA10% A E
customer which contributed over 10% of the Group’s revenue Z— % (2015% : —Z)BPZWA
amounted to HK$1,455,131,000 (2015: HK$1,735,421,000). # 1,455,131,000 /& 7t ( 2015 &
The revenue related to the gaming operation and the hotel 1,735,421,000/8 7T ) ° 2R A BRIEF %
operation. BRBIEEEER -

9. OTHER LOSSES 9. At &5 6

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000

Ti#ou Tt

Impairment loss on prepaid lease TR EFRIE 2 BIEEE

payments (note) (PREE)
Exchange loss b 5 B8
Note:  During the year ended 31 March 2016, impairment indicator of Mzt : BZE2016F3A31HIEFE - B
decline in assets’ value due to economic downturn is noted in HEELRELCE N BEMEREERE
the Inn Hotel Macau. The directors of the Company conducted BETRENBRERR - ARREZEE
an impairment assessment on the hotel's property, plant and PR EZEE 2 - BB RRE
equipment and prepaid lease payments by reviewing their EENHEERER W E S EETR
recoverable amounts. An impairment loss of HK$49,034,000 in E&E ° B2016F3A31HERIEN
respect of prepaid lease payments as at 31 March 2016 has 70 & X I8 7 2R (B 85 18 49,034,000 7%
been recognised (2015: nil). TL(20154F : 4&) o
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

10.FINANCE COSTS

10. A% & H

Interest on: MERE :

— bank borrowings - IRITEE

— other borrowing - HEE
Bank loan arrangement fee RITERZHER

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

T#T Tt

11.PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11. I3 B BT 3%

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$000

Tt F#oC

Profit before taxation has been arrived at Br AR A E R
after charging:

Allowance for doubtful debts, net REREEME - FEE =
Auditor’s remuneration % SN BN & 3,200
Commission expenses in gaming operation BREEZARER

(included in selling and marketing expenses) (FFASHE ks E

EAN) 412,297

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense RERZ 2 FEERA 44,479
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - EBENREZITE 145,693
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE B RRE

equipment 2B 2,986
Release of prepaid lease payments FEBR TSR EFIA 16,580
Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration BINA  BEEENE

and retirement benefit scheme contributions FORORAR AT S 5K 453,315
and after crediting: REFA :
Bank interest income HITHEWA 77,073

Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts, net B[O REREAE - FEE 2,612
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 12,53 - TEITBAEB KR

AND EMPLOYEES” EMOLUMENTS [SEA0]

(a) Directors’” and chief executives” emoluments (a) EHLFEEFTHABH M
Director’s and chief executive’'s emoluments for the year, EERTIETHABRANEE 25
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and AR 45 @ BB _E T 4R Bl K2 2 BE B3
CQO, is as follows: EOT

Non-
executive
director ~ Executive Directors Independent non-executive directors
FArES Bk Biaigs
Ms. Luk Ms. Fan Ms.Chan ~ Ms. Kwan
SiuMan, Mr. Wong Man Seung, Mr. Yu Wiling, ShinLuen, ~ Ms. Wan
Semon ChiFai ~ Vanessa  KingTin ~ Yvonne  Susanna  ChoiHa Total
BhELt  WEEEE URGLE  ARREE KWER%E REEXE  RRELt it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000
TH#n Tin TH#n Tin T#n T T#n T
(note 1) (note 1)
(WD) (D)

2016 20165
Fees g
Other emoluments Hithe
Salarles and other benefits e REMER
Performance related *ERERBEe
incentive payment (note 2) (F%2)
2015 20158
Fees fig - 150 150 180 180 - 180 840
Other emoluments Hfe
Salaries and other benefits e - = - = - - r 3
Performance related FHREAEES
incentive payment (note 2) (P¥2) - = = < - - - -

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED % B B 4% 0 ik A7 R A )




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments
(continued)

Notes:

(1)  Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company on 18 August 2015
and Ms. Wan Choi Ha retired as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 18 August 2015.

(2) The performance related incentive payment is determined
with reference to the operating results and individual
performance.

The chief executives of the Company are also the
Executive Directors and the emoluments disclosed
above include those services rendered by them as chief
executives.

No emolument was recognised or paid by the Group
to the directors as compensation for loss of office and
inducement to join for both years. No director had
waived any emoluments during both years.

The Executive Directors' emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

(1) BEEELLMN2015F8H 18R ES
EEARRRIZEBIYIENTES * M
B ERZLTEN2015E8H18H R
AR RBNIEINITE BT ©

(2) RBRBHEABRSTI2ZLEXE
REARBEE °

ARAIZEBZITHBABRE IS8
TEE  LXRBEZHFWHEERS
EREBITHRA B IR Z IRA -

AEBER M EFERERR K
TEFER/RERBLMERES M
AREEZFHBM - RMEFEA -
MEESRERTOHNE -

AERMRATEEME EBIERRK
EREEARARARANEEEBAEE
HIRIE 2B - LA EPIRIFATTE
ENRBIFATESNNS EZ(E
RBEFEEARBESREM RS
Y EREN
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 12.FF - FRITBAE KR

AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS BEHi (#4)

(continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) 1& & M
The five highest paid individuals did not include any RREEERN  AELZSSEM A
director of the Company for both years. The total +REERADNTEMES - ZEE
emoluments of the five highest paid individuals for both BEEEMALTRREEE Y HFie
years were as follows: RN -

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000

T#ou Tt

Salaries and other benefits

Bonuses 14T

Retirement benefit scheme contributions R FIET B K
Emoluments of the employees were within the following LiiEE ZHMNFIATEE :
bands:

Number of individuals

N
2016 2015

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 8L E

2,500,000 7T

HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ TR
3,500,000 7T
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/ T2
4,000,00078 7T
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001/ TR
4,500,00078 7T
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ T2
5,000,000/ 7T
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 5,000,001/ T2
5,500,000/ 7T
HK$6,500,001 — HK$7,000,000 6,500,001/ T2
7,000,000 7T
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 12,8 % - RTETBAES ;E
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS B ()
(continued)

(c) Retirement benefit schemes

(c) B o A it 3

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the plans are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of the independent
trustees. The Group and each employee make
mandatory contributions of 5% of relevant payroll costs
with monthly cap of HK$1,500 with effect from 1 June
2014 (before 1 June 2014: HK$1,250) to the scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all qualifying employees of a
subsidiary of the Group in Macau since 1 September
2014. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under control of
independent trustees. The retirement scheme cost
recognised in profit or loss represents contributions
payable to funds by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the scheme. Where there are employees of the
Group who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the Macau government. The
Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of
its payroll to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

During the year, the retirement benefit scheme
contributions were HK$5,762,000 (net of forfeited
contributions of HK$550,000) (2015: HK$11,320,000 (net
of forfeited contributions of HK$90,000)).

REBRETHBEREKESREE
EaoatlE A EesEl - ZetElZ
EEBRBIUEIEIAZFHZESE
F UVHAEEZEEDH o &
SEEGZESREBHFSKNADN
5%M st EIEHEHIMERIK - EBR
20146 A1HE AT H1,500%
JC(2014F6 A1 BRI :1,250/87T) °

REB BH2014F9 1B I AR
E BB 2 — M B A BB FT
EREREB LM T HAEIERK
2o ZrtEl 2 EERBIUETAE
HzEEFE  TEAEBZEE
D RIBEE MR 2 RIKETEIRK
RNIEREBIRTERAATAT LR
MESEZHER - MAEEEE
RERESFBAR S A&
EEERAIEE S RS REE
HHIR o

REERFIMBARZEE I AR
PR & 38 2 B &K B 38 AR IR 4@ Al 51
El2KE - AEBAREEH N
%ME 3 L A 7% AR UK A8 A 51 &l

o EAREEHZRIKBEAEEIA
7%%2&E@ﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁ’ﬁiﬁriﬂz%ﬁ
TEHETTHESR o

RAFE  RRBFFEHRES
%8 5 5,762,000 7T (1 Bk B 8
g 4 3 550,000 7% 7T ) (2015 4 -
11,320,000 7T (30 Bk B )8 Y ## 3%
90,000 7T)) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

13.TAXATION 13. P I8

Macau Complementary Income Tax RIS A

2016 2015
HK$’000

HK$'000
T FH#TT

— current tax — BPERFRIE

— overprovision in prior year —BEFE 2 BERE

— reversal of tax provision in prior years —BEBAFE 2 HIAREE
Deferred taxation (note 27) EEFIR (MI5E27)

The Macau Complementary Income Tax (“CT”) is calculated
at the applicable rate of 12% of the estimated assessable
profits for both years.

Pursuant to the CT law, the CT assessment on the estimated
assessable profit in a year of assessment will lapse in
five consecutive years after that year of assessment.
At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company reassessed the adequacy of the CT provision
and determined to reverse part of the Group’s relevant CT
provision of HK$39,837,000 for the 2010 year of assessment
(2015: HK$21,846,000 for the 2009 year of assessment)
accordingly.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made in both years
as there is no assessable profit in the current year while
the estimated assessable profit in prior year was wholly
absorbed by tax losses brought forward in previous years.

PSR S 7o B ([ W 8L )) 7o 7 1
[ kT R B ) 2 A B 1 2% B

B o

BIEFTRE  RARFEEBMGAE
R A 2 TR A R A R S AT R
BRI EERAFREIY - REMAR -
AAREESRBARBEZ R CHEN
EHEHE - WA E BB S AEE
R2010FAMFEE 2 BB AT BEE
39,837,00078 7T (20154 : 20094F FF %1
FEE21,846,000/57T) °

RMRAFEL EERVGH - MREF
Z fh T AR A 2 B 1 4 2 R ARl
MIARERPABIR - Bt - R ESF
B EAER BB ISR
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

13. TAXATION (continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before taxation

13.BiJH (75 )
AEERATRGABERLHEEK
HETBBAEFEENT

2016

2015
HK$000
T

HK$’000
F#t

R B4 B v ) 758,557

Tax charge at the Macau Complementary
Income Tax rate of 12%

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Overprovision in prior year

Effect of reversal of tax provision in prior years

Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised

Others

BRFISRMAERE12%
AEZBREXH

FRBLHE I & R FR R S 2
MG

R & BERRBAZ
MG E

RERBRBRZ BT E
BEFE CBRER
BROBEFEERRAREL

ye
B2 AR 2 BUAER
H

(21,846)

(12)

Taxation for the year

FRHA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

14.DIVIDENDS 14. ik B

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

T#x T T

Dividends recognised as distribution during FEABRRD KRS
the year:

Interim paid in respect of 2016: HK$0.028 per BEIk2016F ZH HIR S, -
share (2015: HK$0.05 per share in respect of Fh%0.028% 7T (20154 :
2015) BIK2015F 2 R HAR &S, -

SFH0.05%7T)

Final paid in respect of 2015: HK$0.06 per share Zik2015% 2 KEAML S :

(2015: HK$0.075 per share in respect of 2014)  &%0.06/8 7T (20154 :
EIR2014F 2 REAAR S :
BR%0.07577T)

162,818

The board of directors proposed the payment of a final EFTeEBZRMNEE2016F3A318 1
dividend of HK$0.052 per share (2015: HK$0.06 per FREZAREREFK0.052% 7L (2015
share) for the year ended 31 March 2016 which is subject & §R0.06%TT) ' HAFARRIR
to approval by the shareholders of the Company in the RREERRBERG FHt/ERAIE
forthcoming annual general meeting. B

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED & 2 W 4430 Jl A FR A )
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

15.EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. 5 % &2 Al
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to KABEE ANELERERZF TR E
owners of the Company is based on the following data: IATEIBEE -

2016 2015

HKS$’000 HK$000
F#T T

Earnings 2%

Earnings (profit for the year attributable REREARRFME 2
to owners of the Company) for the purpose BA(RRARER A
of basic earnings per share FEREEHH) 504,277

Number of shares K7 B E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HEREARMME 2

in issue for the purpose of basic earnings B BT E AR N

per share T 1,302,545,983
Diluted earnings per share is not presented as the Company AR A &) A B 4 2 15 (o] #5872
does not have any dilutive potential ordinary share for both EEmig - W E 25| EREEE R AR o
years.
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O
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. % EWE

HK$'000
T

FAIR VALUE AFE
At 1 April 2014
AT AR

Increase in fair value

R2014F4 518

720,200

11,800

At 31 March 2015
AFERD

Decrease in fair value

MR2015%F3 A31H

At 31 March 2016

MR2016F3 A31H

The investment properties represent completed investment
properties situated in Macau.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
March 2016 and 31 March 2015 have been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on those dates by Memfus
Wong Surveyors Limited, an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers not connected with the Group,
in accordance with the HKIS Valuation Standards (2012
Edition) issued by Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

As at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, all investment
properties were held for rental under operating leases. The
investment properties are held within a business model of the
Group whose business objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. In estimating
the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use. There has been no
change to the valuation technique during the year. The
valuation was arrived at with reference to market evidence
of recent transaction prices for similar properties and rental
income using the applicable market yields for the respective
locations and types of properties.

BREMEHRLUNRAIZEZEREREY
L

AEBZIEEMHENR2016E3H31A K&
2015F 3 A31H 2 AFETIRIE [ = H
ERGTETTERAR J(BRAEE W ERE
BB GEREEYEMGER)RZ
SHEREBNEMESB M 2T ER
EMEeHEER(2012FR) ETHE
METE °

R2016E3 A31H K2015F3HA31H -
FIBEREMEHORBEEHERBEL
MA®R - ZFREYENBBRREMIE
BRLERN HERBEVEMSEAKN
HoRENSZRAEFEERZAEENE
RAFE - RIEFHEZRFER - %
EMEZEAARERRAERER
B AFEEMHERMTEES - HET
DRAHBUMEZ TSR FEZFRAR
Y ¥ S B 2 i A B A FriE B s Uk
HREEZHSMEL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements

are observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement
of financial position

SR B

R B IR DL

A B E M

Commercial properties
in Macau

NRFINEEN R

Fair value
AFAh
HK$’000
T
664,200
(2015:
732,000)

Fair value
hierarchy
AP

Level 3
E3H

Valuation
techniques
and key inputs
6 08 1 7 e o 3
LN (¢

Direct comparison
method with market
unit rate as the key
input

AT EEERAR
BABBMEELR
&

ANNUAL

16. ¥EWME (E)

TEREHRMAEEZSFRENENIRF
18 (JCE 2 BT 5% B B9 1 (B i S 3 A K
BINER  ARREBEQTFEFENE
ABENABRIEEH QA FEEE
TRBENRFESR(B1RHESEIR

All) o

Significant

unobservable
inputs
BEAT B
LYN &

Market unit rate, mainly
taking into account

the location, frontage
and size, between the
comparables, which
ranged from HK$6,800
to HK$29,000 (2015:
HK$7,700 to HK$46,000)
per square foot
FEFRALBYE 2B
fIE  REHRAREAR
WS EE  NFRET
77 1R6,8007% 7T £ 29,0007
T(20154F : 7,700 L2
46,0007 7T )

REPORT 2015/2016

2015/2016 4E#k

Sensitivity/
relationship

of unobservable
inputs

to fair value
Y N
Bz A\ b s
2T A 1%

The higher the
market unit rate
used, the higher
the fair value of
the investment
properties, and
vice versa

Pt AR5 EE
BE ZERED
EMDTFEEA
[ 2 TREA
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

17.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17.¥3% - #25s Mk

Furniture,
fixtures
and

Hotel Leasehold equipment  Plant and Motor

properties  Buildings improvements f&ff~  machinery  vehicles Others Total
RS By MEWERE RELRH WG RES it ) it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000

T#x Tl Ti#n T#x T#x Tl Ti#x T#x

COST 7%

At 1 April 2014 R014E4B1H 1260862 90767 234739 205,181 228,885 10,653 2231 2033318
Additions R - - 66,008 11,832 24,450 691 716 103,697
Disposals e - - (82) (14215 (1,867)  (2,020) - (18,184)
At 31 March 2015 R201553A31A

Additions R

Disposals e

At 31 March 2016 2016434318

DEPRECIATION il

At 1 April 2014 H2014F4A18 162,555 12483 121324 98395 118,126 8,343 872 522,008
Provided for the year EENER 33,493 2269 47,065 31579 29,704 1,054 529 145,693
Eliminated on disposal L EF - > (82) (11315)  (1,424)  (2,020) - (14841)
At 31 March 2015 2015534318

Provided for the year FENEE
Eliminated on disposal &R 3

At 31 March 2016 12016437318

CARRYING AMOUNTS WA
At 31 March 2016 1201643 A31H

At 31 March 2015 1201563A31H 1,064,814 76,015 132,358 84,139 106,062 1,947 1,646 1,465,881

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED % B B 4% 0 ik A7 R A )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R W R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

17.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 3% - # 8% J 3t (4

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are i #EhREBEEANERE

depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates per B BATERTUFNE -

annum:

Hotel properties and Over the estimated useful lives of BIEMERETF (AR A FH40F

buildings 40 years or the unexpired terms SHEBEEE 2 KE

of the relevant lease, whichever MEB(AREE A
is shorter %)

Leasehold improvements 10 — 20% HEMEEE 10 — 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 10 - 20% R~ EE 10 — 20%

equipment B

Plant and machinery 10 - 20% TR B= Bt 25 10 — 20%

Motor vehicles 20% HE 20%

Others 20% H At 20%

The hotel properties and buildings are located in Macau. As BIEMH BT AR - BEER

the lease payments for land and building elements cannot be Iﬁ?\ﬁéﬁé\iiﬂ&@’ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ_}ZFﬂﬁf%iﬂ

allocated reliably, the entire lease is classified as a finance it WMEEHAESEAMEREWRT

lease and includes in the carrying amount of the buildings. ABFZIREE -

ESER
18.PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. TH A AL B kI8

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000

T#ou Tt

COST R
At beginning of the reporting period R EFREAA) 588,141
Impairment loss recognised (note 9) EERREEE (M59) =
Release for the year FENER
At end of the reporting period REMAR 571,561
Analysed for reporting purposes as follows: MERME ZATEAT
Non-current FETRED 554,981
Current mE 16,580
S5I=56i
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise of leasehold AEBE 2 BNEERBERFBEUNRI 2
land in Macau. &+ o
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

19. GOODWILL 19.

As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of goodwill
amounting to HK$110,960,000 (2015: HK$110,960,000) had
been allocated to the cash-generating unit relating to the
Group’s gaming operation.

During the year, the Group performed an impairment review
for goodwill of the Group’s gaming operation based on cash
flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets
for the next five years and after the fifth year, the projections
are extrapolated using a constant growth rate of 3% (2015:
3%) per annum for subsequent years. The recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit of the gaming operation
is determined from value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to revenue and direct costs during the year. The
forecast is discounted using a discount rate of 18% (2015:
20%). The discount rate was determined with reference to
weighted average cost of capital of similar companies in the
industry and adjusted for specific risks associated with the
Group’s gaming operation. The growth rates do not exceed
the long-term average industry growth forecasts. Changes
in revenue and direct costs are based on past practices and
the management’s expectations of future changes in the
market. As the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is higher than the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit, the directors of the Company consider no
impairment loss is necessary.

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20.

[k
MN2016%F3A31H  r BEZE®
& A& 110,960,000 # 7T ( 2015 £ :
110,960,00087T) - ENEEEAEES
B CEEB R SEEEN -

RAFE  AEBEREBERIOZAKRA
FYHBEBERECRESRETR R RE
FRAFRIZEBFEETFI% (20155 :
3%) B R R ETHEZER - 5t
AEEBRLCEER  HEBETRER
e BRUKEERBESELES M 2 AW
EleRETIZFREBRERE - ANUNGTERE
HEBAEZFTEBRIXNEFEANZAE
ECRRERBEFHEBEEREENKA
BB o ZTERIE18% (20154 :
20% ) Z BRIRE FLAPTRE - BRI K H &
REARERR ZMEFHERK AL
REASEBYLEEBR TR TR
BREfTAREMETE - MEEABAR
B ER ZIBRTEA - WA REEK
Az HRBEATENREREY™M
BARREBE(ZTEEMESEE - ARREE
BNz KRB eEaRNREeEEEN
ZHEEE MARREERATENE
EH R BEEE R -

$ 5 B At JE W sk

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

Tt T T

Trade receivables =Y e

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts Bk« REREME
Chips on hand =15

Other receivables and prepayments Hfth R MRSk R T 3K

191,612

135,386
54,073

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED & 2 W 4430 Jl A FR A )



»
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

20.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group normally allows credit periods of up to 60 days
to its trade customers, except for certain credit worthy
customers with long term relationship and stable repayment
patterns, where the credit periods are extended to a longer
period. An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables
(net of allowance) based on the date of credit granted or
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out
below:

0 — 30 days 0£30H
31 - 60 days 31£260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
91 — 180 days 912 180H
Over 180 days 1808 A E

20. 5 5 B At FE WSk (A7)

AEE-RETHESEFPREZEORZ
EEH  EETAARIBBERIEEE
REANEBREETP  REZEEH
AREERE-RERHAH - A TRAE
BREHRPREEHEERRHERR
228 5 R CRREER) 2R
DT -

2016
HK$’000

2015
HK$’000

T#T T

170,541
5,881
834
856
13,500

191,612

Chips on hand represent chips issued by a gaming
concessionaire in Macau which can be exchanged into their
cash amounts.

The carrying amount of trade receivables does not have
debtor which was past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. Included in the trade receivable balances are debtor
balances of HK$14,880,000 (2015: HK$15,190,000) that
would otherwise have been past due or impaired had the
terms not been renegotiated.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance
of HK$32,399,000 (2015: HK$42,186,000) since the
management considered the prolonged outstanding
balances from individual customers were in doubt. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

70 R P R 2 BT
A RS HE -

iAE

B2RKKZREENERPRLED
38 A R 7 B2 (8 K 1A Ul 1 JBS 18 18 4 12 3K
B o B 5 WG B B
14,880,000/ 7T (20154F : 15,190,000
ATL) c N EIE R E AR - R E 5K
TSGR SBORLE

REBRELEANEREZESHEK
X 48 #4 %8 32,399,000 7% 7T (2015 4F -
42,186,000 ) * JTAEEER A E
FIRFzRPREEHRBRETKBGFTE
R AEEMERZEHRERETM
R o
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

20.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. ¥ 5 B oAt FE WLk (72 )
(continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts S B 13 4 558 W)
HK$’000
Tt

At 1 April 2014 R2014F4 11 44,798
Impairment loss recognised EERBEEE 1,130
Amounts recovered during the year FEANKEEE (3,742)
At 31 March 2015 R2015%3A31H
Impairment loss recognised ERRESE
Amounts recovered during the year FEAWKE & 58
Write-off i
At 31 March 2016 7K2016%3H31H

The Group’s management closely monitors the credit quality
of debtors and considers the debtors that are neither past
due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality as continuous
partial repayments are received from these debtors.

Included in trade and other receivables is the following
amount denominated in currency other than functional
currency of the relevant group entities:

AEBEREEYEERESRZEES
Z URRARNFERIREZEE
BAZBDEETIR - FIAZFTHARB
A TMEREZ BRI EBRIFEEE
=/

B o REMEBYREEATARBEEE
ERZEEBUIIN ZERFENS
B

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

T#n T
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

21.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits include (i) deposits of
HK$655,393,000 (2015: HK$2,420,549,000) pledged to
banks to secure for banking facilities granted by the banks
to the Group, and (ii) a deposit of HK$325,000 (2015:
HK$321,000) pledged to a bank to secure for the use of ferry
ticket equipment provided by a third party to the Group. The
pledged bank deposits carry interest at fixed interest rates
which range from 1.35% to 3.35% (2015: 1.60% to 3.70%)
per annum.

As at 31 March 2016, short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity over 3 months carry interest at fixed interest
rates which ranged from 1.40% to 3.20% per annum.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and bank deposits with an original maturity of 3 months or
less, and carry interests at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.01% to 1.25% (2015: 0.01% to 4.40%) per
annum.

Included in pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and bank balances and cash is the following amount
denominated in currency other than functional currency of
the relevant group entities:

21. B 6 1 84T 77 5K S I 8

itk BATR B R B &

BEMIETEREIENEFFRTE
BETETASEMNRITRE 2 KiF
#) 1F #X 655,393,000 78 7T ( 2015 4F :
2,420,549,000%7T) : K (i) E#FF—ME
SBRITIEAER —ZFE = REAEEF
RSB 2 /17 5£325,000%
7L (20154 : 321,000/87T) - 2R
TEFRFEEMENTF1.35EE3.35
B (20154 : 1.60EE3.70/E ):t 8 o

R2016F3A31H @ RAEHHE A=A
N EZ RSB TERREREN RN T
1.40EE3.20E:T 8 °

BITHEHBIREBEAEBEEZRE
LRI AE=Z@ASIAT « HIRT
MHEMENTF0.01EE1.25E (2015
F 0.01EE4.40E )5t B ZRITEMK °

EEMBITHER - RBARTHERMRT
mHMEASEREATAERERER
DREEB AN EEHEN SRR

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

T#n T

2,506,197
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

22.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. ¥ 5 Fe I 4t E £ 3%

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

T#x T T

Trade payables B 5 R
Chips in custody and deposits from gaming REBEEEZFHER
patrons S

Construction payables and accruals FEfS TRERIERERTE A

Other payables and accruals Hith eI R IERT & R

Accrued staff costs FEET B TR

Short-term advance SEEE

211,587

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on NTRASBEREHRHRREZAHZ
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out 2B G RERNRZERER DT
below:

2016 2015
HKS$’000 HK$000
F#T T

0%30H

0 — 30 days

31 - 60 days 31£260H

61— 90 days 61290H

91 - 180 days 91%E180H

Over 180 days 1808 A E

Other payables and accruals mainly include accrued HiENRIRESEATEQIEEL %
commission expenses in gaming operation, accrued EEHASER - EERAREMIT
expenses and other deposits. % o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 3 SV 055 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

23.AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts are due to subsidiaries of Emperor
International, an intermediate holding company of the
Company, which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS OF A
SUBSIDIARY

In accordance with the contractual terms of the shareholders’
agreements, the interest-free amounts due to non-controlling
interests of Luck United are to be repaid from surplus
fund, which represents cash available in Luck United and
its subsidiaries, after paying all operating expenses and
payables, including but not limited to bank loans and third
party loans which are due for repayment together with the
accrued interest.

As at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, the management
of Luck United determined that Luck United had adequate
available surplus fund for the repayment of all principal
amounts outstanding to its shareholders. Therefore, the
directors of the Company consider that the amounts due
to non-controlling interests of HK$132,000,000 (2015:
HK$150,000,000) are repayable at the discretion of non-
controlling interests as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

3. R[] 2 Wit & 2 vl wk JH

BERESRANAERERARES
BIFRIE TP B AR 2 5RIB - O
R NARENRER -

24. % — 4] Wit 8§ 2> w] 2 I 952 ik

HE £ 5k JH

RIBRRGZE 26 QKK - RLuck
United Z JEFE I 28 2 & B FUR S A
BHESEE - BHRE 2 I Luck
United 2 H B 2 RIR XA P A & 2 78
XEENF(BREETERRIPER
ROTEFRRFE=DEFEREFHNE)
BeAPARSE -

7201643 A31H KX201593 A31H -
Luck United & 12 € 3R & Luck United
HERASREBESEERNERE
ZEHAEARE c At ARAEERAE
R IE ¥ A% #E %5 X T8 132,000,000 7 7T
(20154 : 150,000,000/ 7T ) A] 42016
F3A31H &20154%3 A31H EFEEK
S 2 BRMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

25.BANK BORROWINGS 25. 847 &

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

T#x Tt

Bank borrowings: RITIEE -

Bank loan RITER 540,000

Bank overdraft RITEX 5,871

545,871

The bank borrowings are repayable BITEEER TS FHA

as follows: g
Within one year 16 R 38,271
Between one to two years 1226 R 37,800
Between two to five years 2E5F R 145,800
Over five years 5& A E 324,000

545,871

Less: Amounts due within one year shown Ik RBEE TR

under current liabilities 1 NEH 2 5/IE (38,271)

Amounts due after one year shown under ERBEE NIRMIER
non-current liabilities EHA 2 FR 507,600
The bank borrowings carry interest rates at Hong Kong RITEEBRNFEBRITAERE(E
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) + 2.35% (2015: ranged BRITEZEFE ) 112.35/F (20155 -
from HIBOR + 1.3% to HIBOR + 2.35%) per annum and are BERBRITRAEFRENIIEEEFBRIT
secured by certain assets of the Group (see note 26(a) for REFEM235E) 2FEMEGFE » I
details). NAEEETEEEER(FIBERWTE
26(a)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R W R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

26.PLEDGE OF ASSETS 26. & B K4
(a) As at 31 March 2016, certain assets of the Group were (a) R2016F3H31H ' AEBETE
pledged to banks to secure for banking facilities granted EDLBRTRIT  ERATEERER
by the banks to the Group. The carrying values of these ZIRITRLE 2B c REMER -
assets at the end of the reporting period are as follows: ZEEEMNREBELT :

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000

T#u T T

Bank deposits RITIF K 2,420,549
Hotel properties B EYIZE 1,064,814
Investment properties B 732,000
Prepaid lease payments TAfHEEKIE 571,561
Others (note) o Ath (BT 5E) 74,078
4,863,002
Note: Others represent floating charges over certain other assets Mizk : HitiemAEBETFEMEE(E
of the Group including principally property, plant and BATEMEAIIN Y% - Hess
equipment (other than hotel properties), inventories, trade R HE - B REAMERK
and other receivables and bank balances. HLARTITAERS) VB IE A o
(b) The Group also had a bank deposit of HK$325,000 (b) 7 £ @ 75 3K # 325,0003% 7T (2015
(2015: HK$321,000) pledged to a bank to secure for the F : 321 000 L) SRITE P —
use of ferry ticket equipment provided by a third party to BT EB—RE=HIEMALER
iz EIe 5 PR SR 5 B M 2 349

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016 ~ 2015/2016 4%k




“

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

27.DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon during the year:

At 1 April 2014

Credited (charged) to profit or loss

27. B HEBEIH
UTARFERRY EBRERARE
(B REHE

Accelerated

tax

depreciation

& BLIH

it

HK$'000

MN2014F4A1H
RIERET A (HIBR)

At 31 March 2015

Credited (charged) to profit or loss

201563 A31H
REZET A (HIBR)

At 31 March 2016

R20165F3A31H

Note:

The Macau tax authority granted a concessionary deduction
to Grand Emperor Entertainment & Hotel (Macau) Limited
(“Grand Emperor Entertainment”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Macau, to
claim deduction of depreciation allowance for certain of its
property, plant and equipment for tax purpose in an accelerated
pattern over a period which is half of the expected useful lives
of the property, plant and equipment and such a concession
ended on 31 December 2013. Out of the deferred tax liability
of HK$27,309,000 (2015: HK$32,922,000), an amount of
HK$22,348,000 (2015: HK$22,781,000) has been recognised in
respect of the accelerated tax depreciation of those property,
plant and equipment related to the concession.

T
(note)

(P )

(33,978)

1,056

Revaluation

properties
ZES
HK$'000

P :

(89,600)

of Tax
Total
fat
HK$’000
F o

losses
GAEY
HK$'000

T#T TH#T

9,757 (113,821)

(308) (2,611) (1,863)

SR PR IS B P A1 A 2 R R R P s Ak Sz
CHEBEEZEHBRAREEMREHE
R AMR A ) ([ 35 2 18R 4458 JE 8T |)
BT —EERERE  BEETYE -
HeeS Rk 2 BRI E A EHRE - A
MRTERBIEM S 2 - HeE K&
Bz ELTE  EHREZEZR2013
F12A31BKRILE - RELEHBBARE
27,309,000 7T (20154F : 32,922,000
BIL)R  EREEEEHEIME -
BERZBHEZNRBEBTERR
22,348,0005 7T (20154 : 22,781,000
BIT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R W R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

27.DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 27 WBHEBLIE (75 )

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset for the temporary differences
arising from the same group entity.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$122,981,000 (2015: HK$119,997,000) available for
offset against future profits. Deferred tax asset is recognised
in respect of HK$44,266,000 (2015: HK$59,559,000) of
such loss. No deferred tax asset is recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$78,715,000 (2015:
HK$60,438,000) due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. The Group’s unrecognised tax losses might
be carried forward indefinitely, except for an amount of
HK$18,097,000 (2015: nil) which will expire in three years
from the year of assessment.

28.SHARE CAPITAL

THE COMPANY LN
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each
Authorised: ETE

At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and

31 March 2016 201653310

BIREE0.0001E T2 BRKR

R201454F18 201538318 K

SEINGEMBMRNKRM T - EEHIA
BENBENR - SEEEMELZE
R ZFE AR -

MN20164E3A31H » KEEBARHA
T T8 B5 18 122,981,000 7T (2015 4
119,997,000 % T ) 7] f#t 7 K §5 K K
s Al o H A7 8 18 R 44,266,000 7% JT
(20154 : 59,559,000/8 7T ) B R AR
EFRIBEE o B ARG 2R 2 A a]
TEORIME - 2T 2 FiIEE1878,715,0008
T6(2015%4F : 60,438,000/ 7T ) I &R
BEEREEE - NEEZ RKERBIE
EREAJERALEE  HETHRFER=
N E|H ~ FXIE 18,097,000/ 7T (2015
F BRI

28. B A

Number Share

of shares capital

Bty 8 H Ak
HK$'000
Ti#n

Issued and fully paid: BETWHR :

At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and

31 March 2016 201653 /31H

R2014F4A18 « 2015638318 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 5 R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%2016%F3 431 H IF4F

29.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 2
September 2002 which lapsed automatically on 1 September
2012 upon the expiry of the 10-year period.

In order to ensure the continuity of a share option scheme for
the Company to provide incentives or rewards to participants
including the directors and eligible employees of the Group,
the shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 8 August 2013 to approve the adoption of a new
share option scheme (“New Share Option Scheme”) which
was adopted on 15 August 2013.

The major terms of the New Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(a) Purpose

To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future developments
and expansion of the Group.

(b) Eligibility
Eligible participants include employees (whether full

time or part time employee, including non-executive
director) and such other eligible participants.

(0) (i) Total number of shares available for issue under the

New Share Option Scheme as at 22 June 2016 (i.e.
the date of this Annual Report): 129,254,598 shares.

(ii) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents
as at 22 June 2016: 9.92%.

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED

29. Jii§ 5L HE Gt 2

KA FNR200259 A2 H R4 —THEE MR A2
52 HER2012F9 81 H10FHR
[E B BB K -

KRR BEREBIRESEI ZFEE - N
REEEEASEGEKEERERNL
S EERMEHE SR ARFRER
2013F8 H8H BT 2 AR A BB FE K
RA-BLTEAESR  BERATE
IRiERTEI([ AR ESTE]) - T EIE
1201348 A 15 B EER 4K

RS 8 2 T B IR Bdan T

(@) HW
EASERERS BB RABE A
B REEPLRSKARER 7 KK E
B MR o

(b) RS HE

RERZAERRREE(ERER
?JZ%HMEE\ CBREEHTESR)R
REHEMABRBEE

1R 4R 3 1B AR 4E 5t 81 10 2016
F6H22B (AAFEHAH)
AT RITZRMDBEAE
129,254,598% ©

(c) ()

(i) M2016F6A22B HIHE 31T
BRDzBDL - 9.92% °

EBREEHIEARAFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 3 SV 055 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

29.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant under the New Share Option
Scheme

(i) Not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders;

(i) Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any one year exceeding
0.1% of the shares in issue and with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders.

(e) Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the board of directors but in any
event not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

(f) Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
board of directors.

(g) (i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(ii) The period within which payments or calls must or
may be made: Within 28 days from the date of grant;

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

(h) Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the Board and will
not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the
share on the date of grant; (b) the average closing price
of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of
a share.

29. i Jie Bt ) (4 )
(d) Pl B at BDH T 94 5 &
%2 BE RS R

(i) BRIEEERRHLAE - BRIFEEM
1218 A HRATFEBEE EIT
PAn 2 1%

(i) RMEAM—FzRAEZE/RES
BYFRTESTIEESEZ
MBARLZERE BHB
DEITIRM 20.1% R BERB
5,000,000/ T B #& AE SR AL ©

(e) A7 1 I Jle i J e 3y -2 9T R

RELHEREAPREESSER
ZEBBHRZEAER - ERME
AIERT » NEEBBEE N B s
104

(f) i Jhe REAT B Wi WL RS 1 2 I
#e I R
BIEFRBITME  FRLES
REEAMR o

(g) () =HFESRERERERMAEZN
BB - 1.008TT :

(i) B AIBENFREBRNK L
HARR - X A HERT28 A A ¢

(i) fE SRS B A 3 i B
EEEE - A -

(h) € A7 Bl 1] - ik
TEEDRERGEE - ETEE
RTREE : ()N Z i ARG
Z W ME ¢ (D) BB B HIATE
B %A D2 FHRTE : R(c)
B EME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

29.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(i) The remaining life of the New Share Option
Scheme

Approximately 7 years (expiring on 14 August 2023).

No option has been granted since the adoption date of the
New Share Option Scheme.

30.LEGAL RESERVE

31.

32

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the
Macau Special Administrative Region, certain subsidiaries of
the Company are required to set aside 25% of their profit for
the year to a legal reserve until the legal reserve has reached
50% of their registered capital. No appropriation was made
in both years as the legal reserve of those subsidiaries have
already reached 50% of their respective registered capital.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Included in non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2016
was a deemed contribution by non-controlling interests
of HK$112,009,000 (2015: HK$112,009,000) on certain
interest-free loans from the non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary which were contributed in proportion to their
shareholdings.

.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

29. i Jie Bt ) (4 )

(i) 7 B BE 58 = 2 T BIFR
#74F (FA2023%F8 A14HEIHA) -

BT IR A - SR E B AR
ER -

5 fikt i

B RITT B 2 MR RR 2 R AR BIFT
B ARBI2ETHERRE®FREE
M225%MAEEME - EEETHB
EERFMERZ250% B o %M I{E
FERN  BRZEWNBRARZEERE
EEEERBEMEARZ50% @ A&
EH DK °

31. I 12 e B 4

MK2016F3 A31H Z IR = B 1E1R
YE R FEVE IR # %5 1 & 5XIE 112,009,000
7T (20154 : 112,009,00087T) « B
AT A — BB A A JE RS IR
HELBIFTIRAZETREER °

32. & AR

2016
HK$’000

2015
HK$'000

T#t T#E T

R -~ MR RR

Contracted for but not provided in

the consolidated financial statements, BRI XEBERREGRE
net of amounts paid, in respect of property, EUpGE Eadask
plant and equipment (HBREfS25) 130,862
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

33.0PERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 33.2% &Ml & &iE
The Group as lessee A 45 B 1 2 A LN

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

T#x T T

Operating lease rentals paid and payable for FREASEREDED MR

the year in respect of rented premises ERNzEEHERE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REWMEKR  NEBE N ERIEBEY %
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- AN REREHEERB RS HRIK
cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises, HESTE AE  HEBSNEOT :

which fall due as follows:

2016 2015
HKS$’000 HK$000
F#T T

Within one year 1A
In the second to third year inclusive F2EFIF
(PREERMEEA)
The leases were negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 2 EEMENKERRE BT TF1E2
years (2015: 1 to 2 years) and the rentals are pre-determined F(2015%F 1229 )15 MBELTITE
and fixed. EETEMBEEESRE °
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

33.0PERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 33. %M SRIE (&)
(continued)

The Group as lessor A 5 [ A 2 LN

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000

Ti#ou T#E T

Operating lease rentals received and receivable “€ERFE Tk 2 REY %
for the year in respect of completed investment B U Kk E 7 KL EME

properties ®
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RERR - AEEZHBAREIL - 7]
with tenants to receive the following future minimum lease BFAE TR 2R EYENH & U E
payments in respect of premises in the completed investment Tz xEEESRE  EAEHHM
properties in Macau, which fall due as follows: T

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THT

Within one year 1A
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE2EELF
(PREEMFEEA)
Certain premises in the Group's completed investment AREBEEKZEREMENES TWE
properties have committed tenants for the tenancy ranging BEEMAFAME - HEN F125F(2015
from 1 to 5 years (2015: 1 to 5 years) and the rentals are pre- FAEF)TE  MEeNBEBEER
determined and fixed. REELE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

34.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. B3 5 A2 5

(a) During the year, the Group had the following significant (a) RAFE  NEE CHEEESET
transactions with related parties: THEARRS :

2016 2015

HKS$’000 HK$000
T#T T

Advertising fee to related companies MAEEARINESSE

Commission to Dr. Albert Yeung in his mizELE (UAAEEEEE
capacity as a patron of the Group’s VIP BEZ2H5%H) XHAEE
room

Professional service fee to a m—EEERARZTEE
related company ARk 7% 2 A

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  [A1F8:E A &) & — & 7 £t
and merchandising goods from related BARIEEYZE - #eE
companies and a fellow subsidiary MEERE

Reimbursement of administrative expenses &1 Z KB A & P2+

to fellow subsidiaries ZITHREA X
Rental income from a related company ) — R E A A A &
WA
Secretarial fee to a related company M —REREEA A TE
AR5 &

Note: The above related companies and fellow subsidiaries fizE: L@ ARRERHEARH
are either controlled by the AY Trust or a director of the AY Trustsk —& AN A RIEEZEH] o
Company.

(b) The key management personnel of the Company (b) AABIZEREBABARDTZ

are the directors of the Company. The details of the B2 . ABREYNEBEHES S

remunerations paid to them relating to short-term R 7 HB B SR EE12 o

employee benefits are set out in note 12.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

35.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE  35. A2 "] 2 M %% B

COMPANY
The financial information of the Company as at 31 March ARATR2016F3 H31H &201543 A
2016 and 31 March 2015 is as follows: BB ZHBERAT -

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

T#T T T

Total assets BEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—TEB AR ZIXE -
Other receivables H A & WK 2,683
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U — FEIFfY B & R 5RIE 273,404
Pledged bank deposits EHEBRITHER 272,827
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIRE 58,744
607,658
Total liabilities waE
Other payables Eo A FE TR
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary R—ERRZH B A FFKIE
Bank borrowing RITEE
Capital and reserves B R i#E
Share capital N 130
Reserves (note) R (f=E) 598,933

599,063
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

35.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Note:

35. Kl 2 WMB E B (A7)

Share
premium

e i 18
HK$000

B EE

Capital
redemption
reserve

B I s
HK$’000

At 1 April 2014

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

2014 final dividend paid in cash

2015 interim dividend paid in cash

R2014F481H
FERHREERSEE

2014 KBRS - UHRE X
2015 AR HAIRE - UL LT

At 31 March 2015

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

2015 final dividend paid in cash

2016 interim dividend paid in cash

M2015%3H31H
FREMNREHKEEE

2015 REMR B+ LARE
2016 EAR S - B & X

At 31 March 2016

1R2016F3A31H

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016 ~ 2015/2016 4%k

T#t

436,765

T# T

668

Accumulated

profits Total
Bt Mgt
HK$’000 HKS$’000

Tl F#
123,439 560,872
200,879 200,879
(97,691) (97,691)
(65,127) (65,127)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

36.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) General Information of subsidiaries

36. [t 8 2 vl w1
(a) P8 2wl — & B
AAalR2016E3 H31H k20154
3A31BZEEMBARIFFIBLT :

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 are as follows:

Place of Nominal value

Name of subsidiary

W ) 4

incorporation/
establishment/
operation
RE L,/
B/

of issued

ordinary share/
registered capital

C#TEE
ReleA,/
a1} 6 A

The Group’s attributable equity interest
4 55 L 1 2 A
Directly Indirectly
H# Ml

2016 2015 2016

% % %

Principal activities

REREH

Acute Rise Limited British Virgin US§$1 60 Investment holding
HEBRAF Islands/Macau 1ET BERR
ERRAES/ A

Affluent Travel Hong Kong HK$500,000 60  Provision of travel
Services Limited 0 500,00077C agency services

ERkEERAR AL TRE 1) RS

Asian Glory Limited Macau MOP25,000 60 Property holding

DHRRERAR )i 25,0002 T BENR

Emperor Entertainment ~ Macau MOP25,000 60 Provision of project
Hotel Management ~ 2FS 25,0002 T financing services
Limited IR A RE R

REREAEERER AT

Emperor Entertainment  British Virgin US$50 100 Investment holding
Hotel Investment Limited  Islands/Macau 50%TT REBR

REREREREERAT RERLES/ R

Grand Emperor Macau MOP500,000 60  Provision of hotel and
Entertainment 2P 500,000 catering services

HERETERM RAUEE RER RS

Grand-Invest & Macau MOP100,000 100  Provision of hotel and
Development Company 2F9 100,000 7T catering services
Limited BRAEIE R B SRR

BEREERERAA

Keen Million Limited British Virgin US$1 60 Mass market and slot

Islands/Macau i machine operations
EBANES /A RERGR AT R
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

36.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(a) General Information of subsidiaries

(continued)

Name of subsidiary

I v 4

Luck United

Oceanic Leader
Investments Limited

Precision Faith Limited
AEBRAR

Quick Gain
Investments Limited

Right Achieve Limited
ERBRAT

Tin Hou Limited
ARBRAF

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation

R AL/
BOLE
BRI

British Virgin
Islands/Macau
EBRAEE/ B

British Virgin
Islands/Macau

RERLAS/ B

Macau
BP9

British Virgin
Islands/Macau

RERERES/ AN
British Virgin
Islands/Macau

RRRAEE/ R

Macau

RP

Nominal value

of issued

ordinary share/
registered capital

ST
R/
i 7K

US$10,000
10,000%7T

US$1
1T

MOP100,000
100,000

US$1
E

US$1
e

MOP25,000
25,0002

36. Bt & 2 Wl wEAE ()

(a) Wit/ 2\l — B R (4F)

The Group's attributable equity interest

A HHEAY 2 T
Directly Indirectly
H# %
2016 2015 2016
) % %

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

Principal activities

FERH

2015
%

60 Investment holding

RERR

100  Investment holding
REBR

100  VIP room operation and
provision of gaming-
related marketing and
promotion services

RUESEE BB REY
REmSEEREER
%

- Investment holding

RERR

60  Investment holding

REZK

100 Provision of agency
services for gaming
operation

REBYEEEH TN
R

2015/2016 4E#k
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

36.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. W6 B A Wl wETS (42)

(continued)
(a) General Information of subsidiaries

(continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. All
of these subsidiaries operate in Macau. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as

(a) FiHE 2wl — &R (A7)

KARAEREZER - ERIIBE
RUNEERENBRERTERE
ZAREHIBAR o ARAEER
RILEMMNBAR ZHEE SR
tERRITE

REBYR  ARABHREHAEE
ME TEANEMHMBAR - %F
B A A2 BRI EE - ZEM
BRRMEBERBHAMLT -

follows:

Principal place
Number of subsidiaries
P JE 2> w1 80 H
2016 2015

of business

FELE

Principal activities

B E 377

Investment holding and others Macau
REER M H M P

None of the subsidiaries of the Company issued any
debt securities as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

R2016F3 A31H K%2015F3 7318 -
NN RN PR S S SRR DR R T
#0

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED & 2 W 4430 Jl A FR A )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 3 SV 055 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # %20164F3H31H [F4FJ#

36.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company that have material non-
controlling interests:

Place of
incorporation/
principal place
of business
GALL AR 7
FEZEWE

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting
rights held by non-
controlling interests

LB a4 F 2

A 2 0 B

2016 2015
% %

Name of
subsidiary

W ) 41

Luck United* British Virgin

Islands/Macau

AERLEE/ B

% Representing Luck United and its subsidiaries.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

Profit allocated to
non-controlling interests

JYRUT e A 2 3t

HK$'000
Ti#x

36. Bt & 2 Wl wEAE ()

(b) FEAT HK I 9% B HE 4 1 &2
B i 2 Wl 2 w1
TREIEEEA IR RO
RAFZEMB DR 2 #1E -

Accumulated non-
controlling interests
EHE R
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T

2016 2015
HK§'000

T

190,516

* RZRLuck United R EETEB AT ©

2015/2016 4E#k
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #%20164F3 H31H [F4FEJ#

36.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

36. Fft J&§ 2> Wl e 4% (4
(b) B BRI 15 B A 4 19 JE 22

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

(continued)
Luck United*

Luck United*

B BiH & O Wl 2 WA (A

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T 0
Current assets TENE E 2,870,084
Non-current assets JEmENE E 2,171,893
Current liabilities mENBE 857,319
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE 152,433
Equity attributable to owners of Luck United Luck United# A A &L
e 4,032,225
Revenue WA 1,465,809
Expenses, other gains and losses MY~ Bl R EE 989,520
Profit and total comprehensive income for  FE%A| k&2 KR LT
the year 476,289
Profit and total comprehensive income for  JE{5EE % R 2 EW S
the year attributable to: A
Owners of the Company PIN/NGIEZ 2N 285,773
Non-controlling interests PR e 190,516
476,289
Net cash inflow from operating activities RELEEE 2HEBMA
i 613,516
Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing REREEE 2H TR
activities (mi) F58 (354,491)
Net cash outflow from financing activities REBMEESD 2BHE R
FEE (90,000)
Net cash inflow REMANFEE 169,025

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED % B B 4% 0 ik A7 R A )




FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AR B R

For the year ended 31 march 2016 #%2016%-3 31 H 1L

RESULTS

e

Year ended 31 March
HE3IH31H L4 E

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
Tt THIT TH#IT Tt T

Revenue WA

Profit before taxation R A% A& A
Taxation IR

Profit for the year F 2% A
Profit for the year FEMRFEE BT -

attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIET PN

Non-controlling interests ~ FEFERR#E2S

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

2,034,787 2,265,476 2,028,293 1,783,074

758,557 1,002,468 896,562 822,970
(63,764)  (94,165)  (83,692)  (79,726)

694,793 908,303 812,870 743,244

504,277 600,006 548,625 465,469
190,516 308,297 264,245 200 RS

694,793 908,303 812,870 743,244

B Mk AE

At 31 March
#3H31H

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T Tt THT Tt Tt

Total assets BEE

Total liabilities BEE

Total equity attributable to: N5l E(E484E2S -

Owners of the Company iN/NEIETZ DN

Non-controlling interests  FEFERRHEZS

6,373,945 6,156,350 4,421,465 3,653,651
(1,459,614) (1,773,994)  (798,241)  (696,845)

4,914,331 4,382,356 3,623,224 2,956,806

3,301,441 2,959,982 2,509,147 2,106,580
1,612,890 1,422,374 1,114,077 850,226

4,914,331 4,382,356 3,623,224 2,956,806

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016 ~ 2015/2016 4%k




O
SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
IES T

At 31 March 2016 2201643 H31H

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March ZAR&EBENR2016E3 31 25 & WEF B W

2016 are as follows: T
COMPLETED INVESTMENT A P S~ EE 2
PROPERTIES
The
Group’s
interest
Location Purpose Floor area A S
B A& 48 T JRE A1 BE 25
sq. ft. Y%
W
1.  Shops of Ground Floor of the Commercial 4,672 60
Grand Emperor Hotel, FEES
Macau
JRP I SIREEE E T R4
2.  8th Floor of the Grand Emperor Commercial 22,266 60
Hotel, Macau GES
RPT 2 IREEHE E8E
3. 10th Floor of the Grand Emperor Commercial 22,266 60
Hotel, Macau EES
MRPIZE 2 IRGETE 51018
4. Portion of Ground Floor and Commercial 24,200 100
the whole of 1st Floor of the [SES

Inn Hotel Macau
(formerly known as Best Western
Hotel Taipa), Macau

SRR B E T 2D R1IEEE
(RTTERFIRE BB S )

EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT HOTEL LIMITED & 2 W 4430 Jl A FR A )
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